Persons with disabilities experiencing problems accessing PDF file should contact <u>nchsed@cdc.gov</u>, or call 301-458-4688

H E A L T H S T A T I S T I C S

FROM THE U., S., NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY

selected health characteristics by area

Geographic Regions and Urban-Rural Residence

United States July 1957-June 1959

Selected statistics relating to limitation of activity, disability days, chronic conditions, persons injured, and Physician and dental visits by geographic region and urban, rural-farm, and rural-nonfarm residence. Based on data collected in household interviews during the period July 1957-June 1959.

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH. EDUCATION, AND WELFARE Abraham A. Ribicoff, Secretary

> Public Health Service Luther L. Terry, Surgeon General

Washington, D. C.

March 1961

NATIONAL CENTER FOR HEALTH STATISTICS

Forrest E. Linder, Ph. D., Director Theodore D. Woolsey, Assistant Director

U. S. NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY

Theodore D. Woolsey, Chief Alice M. Waterhouse, M. D., Chief Medical Advisor James E. Kelly, D. D. S., Dental Advisor Walt R. Simmons, Statistical Advisor O. K. Sagen, Ph. D., Chief, Special Studies Philip S. Lawrence, Sc. D., Chief, Health Interview Survey Margery R. Cunningham, Staff Assistant Robert T. Little, Chief, Automatic Data Processing

The U. S. National Health Survey is a continuing program under which the Public Health Service makes studies to determine the extent of illness and disability in the population of the United States and to gather related information. It is authorized by Public Law 652, 84th Congress.

CO-OPERATION OF THE BUREAU OF THE CENSUS

Under the legislation establishing the National Health Survey, the Public Health Service is authorized to use, insofar as possible, the services or facilities of other Federal, State, or private agencies. For the Health Interview Survey the Bureau of the Census designed and selected the sample, conducted the household interviews, and processed the data in accordance with specifications established by the Public Health Service.

Public Health Service Publication No. 584-C5

CONTENTS

I.

	Page
Summary	1
Source and Description of Data	2
Disability	3
Long-Term Disability	3
Disability Days	4
Illness	5
Chronic Conditions	5
Persons Injured	6
Use of Medical and Dental Services	7
Physician Visits	7
Dental Visits	8
Detailed Tables	9
Appendix I. Technical Notes-on Methods	28
Background of This Report Statistical Design of the Health Interview	28
Survey	28
General Qualifications	29
Reliability of Estimates	29
Appendix II. Definitions of Certain Terms	
Used in This Report	33
Demographic Terms	33
Terms Relating to Disability	33
Long-Term Disability	33
Disability Days	34
Terms Defining Morbidity Conditions	34
Terms Relating to Conditions	35
Terms Relating to Persons Injured	35
Medical Care Terms	36
Dental Care Terms	36
Appendix III, Questionnaire	37

GEOGRAPHIC REGIONS AND URBAN-RURAL RESIDENCE

SUMMARY

This report, based on health interviews conducted in approximately 73,000 households and covering about 235,000 persons throughout the United States during the period July 1957-June 1959, presents information on various health topics for the four major regions of the United States.



About 40.9 percent of persons living in the United States were reported to have one or more chronic conditions. While some of these conditions were relatively minor, others were serious conditions such as heart disease, diabetes, or mental illness. In the four major regions the percentage of persons with one or more chronic conditions ranged from 38.8 percent in rural-nonfarm areas in the South to 44.9 percent in urban areas of the West. However, the proportion of persons with limitation of activity due to chronic conditions was higher in rural-farm areas of the South than in any of the other residence areas.

2.	Percent of persons with 1+ chronic conditions			
Region	Total	With limitation of activity		
All regions	40.9	10.0		
Northeast North Central South West	40.5 41.2 39.5 44.2	9.5 9.8 10.5 9.9		

The number of restricted-activity days per person per year ranged from 15.8 days in ruralnonfarm areas in the Northeast to 23.7 days in rural-farm areas of the South. These areas also showed the widest variation in bed-disability days, with persons in the Northeast rural-nontarm areas having 5.6 bed-days per year and those in the rural-farm areas of the South having 8.8 bed-days.

	Number of days per person per year			
Region	Re- stricteo activity	Bed disa- bility		
All regions	17.9	6.8		
Northeast North Central South West	17.1 16.3 19.9 18.3	6.3 6.1 7.8 6.8		

This report was prepared by Geraldine A.Gleeson of the U.S. National Health Survey staff.

Urban residents in the West region had on the average the highest rate of physician visits, 6.0 per year, for any regional population group, while persons living in rural-farm areas of the South had the lowest rate, 3.4 physician visits per person per year. A physician visit is defined as consultation with a physician, in person or by telephone, for examination, diagnosis, treatment, or advice.

The rate of dental visits was highest among persons in the urban areas of the Northeast, 2.3 visits per person per year, and residents of rural-farm areas in the South had the lowest rate of dental visits, 0.7 visits per year. Each visit to a dentist's office for treatment or advice, whether the service was provided by the dentist or by a hygienist acting under his supervision, was considered as a dental visit.

	Visits pe per	r person year
Keglon	Physician	Denta1
All regions	5.0	1.5
Northeast North Central South West	5.4 4.7 4.7 5.7	2.1 1.5 1.0 1.7

Based on data collected by the National Health Survey during July 1957-June 1959, approximately 273 persons per 1,000 population were injured per year in the United States. Comparable rates for the four major regions were: Northeast, 251.3 persons; North Central, 277.4 persons; South, 268.9 persons; and West, 311.2 persons.

SOURCE AND DESCRIPTION OF DATA

The information contained in this report was obtained from nationwide household interviews conducted by the U. S. National Health Survey. The survey is continuous, each week covering a random sample of the civilian noninstitutional population of the United States.

The sample for the survey was designed in such a fashion that health data can be provided for major geographic areas and for urban and rural sectors of the Nation. In this report information on certain health topics is shown for the four major regions of the United States, and for the urban, rural-nonfarm, and rural-farm areas within each region. Three general health measures were selected for inclusion: (1) the amount of disability due to illness, (2) the prevalence of selected chronic conditions and number of persons injured, and (3) the use of medical and dental services. In presenting these data in geographic detail it has been necessary in some instances, because of the magnitude of the sampling error, to consolidate information relating to health topics, e.g., persons with partial and major limitation of activity have been combined and shown as persons with any degree of chronic limitation of activity.

For the purpose of classifying the population by geographic region, the National Health Survey uses the same grouping of States as that used by the Bureau of the Census (see map on page 1 or Appendix II for grouping of States).

In general, the description of the health status of persons living in a geographic region is influenced to some extent by the distribution of persons within the region. For instance, if a relatively high proportion of old people live in an area, one would expect the rate of certain illnesses and disabilities to be high in the area because it would be weighted by the higher rates known to exist in the older population. Because of the differences in the age distribution of the population in the four regions, age-specific rates are shown for most of the health topics presented in this report. In some of the tables, however, it has not been possible to include age as a variable because the small frequencies resulting from a more detailed breakdown would have produced unreliable rates. For the correct interpretation of regional differences appearing in such tables, it is necessary to take into account the distribution of the population in the several regions, shown in table A.

Included in Appendix I of this report is a brief description of the survey design and methods used in estimation. Since all of the data included in this report are estimates based on a sample of the population rather than on the entire population, they are subject to sampling errors. While the sampling errors for most of the estimates are of relatively low magnitude, where an estimated number or the numerator or denominator of a rate or percentage is small, the sampling error may be high. Tables of sampling errors and instructions for their use are also presented in Appendix I.

Definitions of the terms used in this report may be found in Appendix II. Since many of the terms have specialized meanings it is suggested that the reader familiarize himself with these definitions. A facsimile of the health interview questionnaire used during the period July 1958-June 1959 is presented in Appendix III.

Table A.	Percent	distribution	of	pers	ons	according	to	age	by	residence	and	region:
		United	Sta	ates,	Ju1	y 1957-Ju	ne	1959				

	Region					
Residence and age	All regions	North- east	North Central	South	West	
	Percent distribution					
All areas	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	
0-24 25-44 45-64 65+ Urban 0-24 25-44 45-64 65+	44.1 26.8 20.5 8.6 100.0 41.5 27.1 22.2 9.2	39.8 27.8 23.1 9.3 100.0 38.4 27.3 24.7 9.6	44.3 26.9 19.9 8.9 100.0 42.2 26.9 21.3 9.5	47.0 25.6 19.4 8.0 100.0 44.2 27.1 20.8 7.9	44.7 27.7 19.2 8.4 100.0 41.6 27.5 21.1 9.8	
Rural nonfarm	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	100.0	
0-24 25-44 45-64 65+ Rural farm	48.1 28.4 16.4 7.2 100.0	43.7 30.5 18.0 7.8	47.8 28.9 15.8 7.5 100.0	49.4 26.5 16.8 7.2 100.0	50.8 29.0 14.6 5.6 100.0	
0-24 25-44 45-64 65+	48.0 21.7 21.0 9.2	45.0 22.7 20.6 11.7	46.6 23.0 21.6 8.8	50.2 20.0 20.5 9.2	45.4 24.6 21.8 8.3	

DISABILITY

Two aspects of disability are measured in the National Health Survey: one, referred to as chronic limitation of activity described as inability to carry on all or part of one's regular activities; the other, relatively short periods of disability described as days of restricted activity, bed disability, and work loss.

Long-Term Disability

For each person for whom a chronic condition was reported during the interview, the respondent was shown one of the Cards C through F (reproduced in Appendix III) and was asked to select the statement on the card which described most accurately the activity limitation status of the person. The cards vary in wording in relation to the usual activity (worker, housewife, student, preschool) of the person, but are consistent in describing comparable degrees of limitation for each activity status. As previously mentioned, all degrees of activity limitation have been combined in this report so that greater detail in geographic distribution could be shown.

The highest proportion of persons with one or more chronic conditions, 44.2 percent, was reported in the West region, while the lowest percentage, 39.5 percent, was reported in the South (table 1). However, the percentage of persons with any degree of chronic limitation of activity due to chronic conditions was higher in the South than in any of the other regions (fig. 1). Much of this activity limitation in the South is explained by the high prevalence of chronic conditions among persons 65 years and older, a population group where activity limitation would be expected. This is substantiated by data shown in table 2-47.7 percent of the persons 65 years and older living



Figure 1. Percent of persons with any degree of chronic limitation of activity by region and residence.

in the South region had some degree of activity limitation. In each of the residence areas in the South the rate of activity limitation among persons 65 years and older was high in relation to rates in the other geographic regions, but the differential was greater in farm areas than in rural-nonfarm and urban areas (table B).

The comparatively low rate of chronic limitation of activity in the Northeast region was rather striking in view of the fact that 32.4 percent of the population in this region was in the age group 45 years and over, as compared with 28.8 percent in the North Central, 27.4 percent in the South, and 27.6 percent in the West (table A).

Disability Days

Information on disability interms of days was obtained for each condition, either chronic or acute, reported in response to questions 11-17 and entered in table I of the interview questionnaire (see Appendix III). The estimated number of restricted-activity days is based on responses to the questions in columns (e), (f), and (g) in table I of the questionnaire. Responses to the question in column (h) formed the basis for the estimate of number of bed-disability days, and responses to the questions in columns (i) and (j) were used to determine the estimate of number of days lost from work. Precise definitions for each of the kinds of disability days are given in Appendix II. A day of disability resulting from more than one condition was ascribed to each condition in tabulations dealing with condition characteristics. However, in the tabulation of disability days for persons, the day is counted only once as a day of disability for the person involved. Only person-days of disability are shown in this report.

As in the case of chronic activity limitation, persons living in the South had the highest rates of restricted-activity, bed-disability, and workloss days (table 3). In urban areas the rate of disability for all persons was no higher in the South than in other regions, but in rural areas, both nonfarm and farm, the number of restrictedactivity, bed-disability, and work-loss days per person per year was significantly higher in the South. In figure 2, the relative rates of disability are shown graphically in terms of bed-disability days for each residence area in the four regions.

Disability rates presented by age group in table 4 indicate that the higher rate of disability

	Residence						
Region	All areas	Urban	Rural nonfarm	Rural farm			
	Percent						
All regions	42.3	39.1	46.3	51.2			
Northeast North Central South West	38.3 41.9 47.7 39.9	37.3 38.8 43.1 38.2	40.4 48.5 48.4 44.4	45.5 46.0 57.4 43.4			

Table B. Percent of persons 65 years and older with chronic limitation of activity: United States, July 1957-June 1959

	Residence					
Region	All areas	Urban Rural nonfarm		Rural farm		
	Number of bed-disability days per person per year					
All regions	14.2	13.5	15.7	15.5		
Northeast North Central South West	11.1 13.6 20.3 9.5	10.8 14.0 19.8 9.3	11.9 14.4 20.3 11.2	12.3 10.2 21.4 6.8		

Table C. Number of bed-disability days per person per year for persons 65 years and older: United States, July 1957-June 1959



Figure 2. Number of bed-disability days per person per year by region and residence.

in the South occurs among persons 45 years and older, with the rate for persons 65 years and over much higher than for persons in this age group in other regions. From table C, which shows the rate of bed disability for this segment of the population by place of residence, it is apparent that in the South the rate of disability is high among persons 65 years and older regardless of their place of residence.

ILLNESS

In this report, tables showing illness by region and residence have been limited to the prevalence of selected chronic conditions, and the number and rate of persons injured. The incidence of acute conditions by condition group has not been included because a recent report (Series B, No. 23) issued by the National Health Survey has covered in some detail the geographic distribution of acute conditions. Readers are referred to this publication for detailed data on acute conditions by geographic region.

Data on conditions are based on replies to a series of "illness-recall" questions, designed to assist the respondent in reporting illnesses as accurately and completely as possible. In addition, check lists of chronic conditions and impairments were read to each respondent to determine the presence of chronic illness among family members during the 12-month period prior to interview.

Chronic Conditions

In the National Health Survey, a condition is considered to be chronic if it is reported as having been present for more than 3 months at the time of interview, or if it is described by the respondent in terms of one of the conditions on the check lists of chronic conditions and impairments (Cards A and B, Appendix III) regardless of how long the condition has existed.

The prevalence of chronic conditions estimated on the basis of data collected in the health-interview phase of the National Health Survey includes in the various diagnostic categories those cases which the respondent is aware of, remembers, and considers of sufficient importance to report. Prevalence based on this kind of information can be expected in some instances to differ widely from estimates based on clinical examination or medical records. Since the degree of accuracy and completeness with which the various condition categories are reported is to a large extent dependent on the nature of the condition itself, it has been the policy of the National Health Survey to prepare individual reports dealing with specific condition categories. In this manner it has been possible to present the limitations and qualifications pertaining to the particular diagnostic category.

In this report, data are presented which provide information on the geographic distribution of selected chronic conditions. In lieu of repeating the background information necessary for the proper interpretation of these data, it is suggested that users of this information refer to reports in the B Series dealing with specific chronic condition groups.

The groups shown in this report are listed below with their equivalent International Classification Code Numbers or Supplementary Impairment Code Numbers:

Chronic Condition Group	International Classification Code Numbers, 1955 Revision
Heart conditions	410-443
High blood pressure	444-447
Diabetes	260
Peptic ulcer	540-542
Arthritis and rheumatism	720-727
Hernia	560-561
Asthma-hay fever	240-241
Chronic bronchitis	502
Chronic sinusitis	513
Impairment Group	Supplementary Impairment Code Numbers
Visual impairments	X00-X05
Hearing impairments Paralysis of major ex-	X06-X09
tremities and/or trunk	X40-X49; X50-X59; X60-X69

The distribution of selected chronic conditions in the four geographic regions is shown by sex in tables 5 and 6, and by residence in tables 7 and 8.

There was no appreciable difference in the prevalence of heart conditions by geographic region, however, the rate for all regions was somewhat higher in rural-farm areas than in urban and nonfarm areas. This differential by place of residence was quite apparent within the South region. The prevalence rate for high blood pressure was also higher in Southern rural-farm areas than in comparable areas of the other regions. These diseases which are known to be prevalent among older persons and to cause extensive disability may account to some extent for the increased rate of disability among older persons in the South (tables 2 and 4). The rate for high blood pressure was consistently higher for females than for males in all of the regions.

The rate for diabetes was 11.3 cases per 1,000 population in the Northeast region, 9.2 cases in the North Central region, 8.3 in the South, and 6.2 cases in the West. This pattern of geographic distribution, exhibiting a gradual decrease in prevalence from east to west, was also characteristic of the rates by sex, and by urban and rural-nonfarm area of residence. This distribution was of particular interest because a similar geographic trend has been noted in age-adjusted mortality rates for diabetes.

The rates for peptic ulcer and for hernia did not vary among regions. The higher prevalence of these conditions among males and in rural-farm areas was consistent in each of the regions.

The prevalence of arthritis and rheumatism was in excess of 80 cases per 1,000 population in rural-farm areas of each of the regions as compared with rates ranging from 50-60 per 1,000 persons in rural-nonfarm areas, and from 60-70 per 1,000 persons in urban areas.

Among chronic conditions affecting the respiratory system, the rate for sinusitis was highest in the North Central region, with cases among persons in rural-nonfarm areas accounting for the high rate. Asthma-hay fever and chronic bronchitis were more prevalent in the West than in other regions with rates for all places of residence—urban, rural nonfarm, and rural farm contributing to the high rate. The incidence of acute respiratory conditions was also found to be higher in the West than in the other geographic regions (see table 10, Series B-No. 23).

Differences in the rate of impairments in the several regions were not remarkable, although the rate of hearing impairments among males and among urban and rural-farm residents was slightly higher in the West than in any of the other regions.

Persons Injured

Whenever an injury or the residual effects of any injury was reported, information about the circumstances of the original accident was recorded in table A of the questionnaire (see Appendix III). Only one entry was made in table A for each accident reported by a person, irrespective of the number of injuries which he suffered as a result of the specific accident.

Although the survey questionnaire is designed to collect information on all injuries, it should be emphasized that only injuries that were medically attended or resulted in one or more days of restricted activity are included in this report.

The number of persons injured per 1,000 population is shown in figure 3 for each of the four major regions. Data on persons injured, presented in tables 9-11, indicate that the rate of injury is significantly higher among persons living



Figure 3. Number of persons injured per 1,000 population per year by region.

in rural-nonfarm areas of the West than among any of the other residence groups (table 9). The rate of injury was particularly high in the West among persons under 45 years of age (table 10). The age group 0-14 years had the highest injury rate in all regions except the North Central, where the rate for persons 15-24 years was higher than for any other age group in that region. While all classes of accidents contributed to the high rate of injury in the West region, injury occurring in the home was the only classification for which the rate was significantly higher than in any of the other regions.

USE OF MEDICAL AND DENTAL SERVICES

Physician Visits

In the National Health Survey a physician visit is defined as consultation with a physician, in person or by telephone, for examination, diagnosis, treatment, or advice. (For a more complete definition, see Appendix II.)

The number of physician visits per person per year ranged from 4.7 visits in the North Central and South regions to 5.7 visits in the West region. In general, the number of visits increased with age in each of the regions; an exception to this general trend, however, was noted among children in the Northeast region where the physician visit rate was higher than for persons 15-24 and 25-44 years of age (table 12).

The number of physician visits per person per year in the United States decreased in relation to population density, with persons in urban areas having an average of 5.3 visits, persons in rural-nonfarm areas, 4.9 visits, and those in rural-farm areas, 3.8 visits. This relationship to population density was apparent in each of the place-of-visit categories and also within each of the four regions (table 13).

The average annual number of physician visits per person was highest for persons living in urban areas of the West (6.0 visits per person), and lowest for those residing in rural-farm areas of the South (3.4 visits per person). This latter figure may seem rather surprising in view of the high rate of chronic limitation of activity and of bed-disability days among persons residing in rural-farm areas in the South (see figs. 1 and 2). However, data shown in table 12 indicate that physician visits for persons 65 years and over in Southern rural-farm areas averaged higher than for persons in this age-residence group in other regions.

The general trend of increased physician visits with age was characteristic of office visits. Home visits, as well as those in the category "other and unknown," were slightly higher for persons 0-14 years of age than for persons in succeeding age groups, with the exception of the group 65 years and older. The category "other and unknown" includes telephone consultations and visits made to hospital clinics, which may explain the higher rate of visits for children.

Differences in the distribution of physician visits by place of visit in the several regions are apparent from the percentages shown in table 15. The proportion of physician visits classified as home visits was significantly higher in the Northeast than in any of the other regions (fig. 4). The proportion of home visits in this area was higher



in each of the age groups, and particularly so among children and persons over 65 years of age. About 40 percent of the visits for children in the Northeast region were made to the doctor's office, as compared with approximately 60 percent in the other regions.

Dental Visits

A dental visit, in the National Health Survey, is defined as any visit to a dentist's office for treatment or advice, whether the service was provided by a dentist or by a hygienist working under a dentist's supervision.

Although the estimates of the volume of dental visits presented in this report are based on the accumulation of counts of dental visits over a two-year-interviewing period, the aggregates shown in the tables represent, as in the case of physician visits, the average annual volume of dental visits.

In all regions the number of visits per person per year was higher in urban areas than in rural areas, and higher in nonfarm areas than in farm areas (table 16). This differential by place of residence was most striking in the Northeast where persons residing in urban areas made on the average 2.3 visits to the dentist per year, persons in rural-nonfarm areas, 1.7 visits, and those in rural-farm areas, 1.0 visits per year.

Reflecting the influence of the distribution of the population by place of residence, the Northeast region, in which approximately three fourths of the residents live in urban areas, had the highest rate of dental visits, 2.1 per person per year (fig. 5). In the South, where about one half of the



Figure 5. Number of dental visits per person per year by region and residence.

population live in rural areas, the rate of dental visits was lowest, 1.0 visits per person per year. In each of the age groups shown in table 17, the rates for the Northeast were consistently high, while those in the South were, in every age group, lower than in the other regions. Rates of dental visits by age for the North Central and the West were quite similar.

The extremely low rate of dental visits for persons over 65 years of age is due to the high proportion of edentulous persons in the age group.

DETAILED TABLES

r

DISABILITY

Table	1.	Average number and percent distribution of persons according to presence of chron- ic conditions and limitation of activity by region and residence: United States, July 1957-June 1959	11
	2.	Average number and percent distribution of persons according to presence of chron- ic conditions and limitation of activity by region and age: United States, July 1957-June 1959	12
	3.	Average annual number of disability days and number of days per person per year by region and residence: United States, July 1957-June 1959	13
	4.	Average annual number of disability days and number of days per person per year by region and age: United States, July 1957-June 1959	14
		ILLNESS	
	5.	Prevalence of selected chronic conditions by region and sex: United States, July 1957-June 1959	15
	6.	Prevalence of selected chronic conditions per 1,000 population by region and sex: United States, July 1957-June 1959	16
	7.	Prevalence of selected chronic conditions by region and residence: United States, July 1957-June 1959	17
	8.	Prevalence of selected chronic conditions per 1,000 population by region and resi- dence: United States, July 1957-June 1959	18
	9.	Average annual number and rate per 1,000 population of persons injured by region and residence: United States, July 1957-June 1959	19
	10.	Average annual number and rate per 1,000 population of persons injured by region and age: United States, July 1957-June 1959	19
	11.	Average annual number and rate per 1,000 population of persons injured according to class of accident by region and residence: United States, July 1957-June 1959-	20
		PHYSICIAN VISITS	
	12.	Average annual number of physician visits and number of physician visits per per- son per year by residence, region, and age: United States, July 1957-June 1959	21
	13.	Average annual number of physician visits and number of physician visits per per- son per year by place of visit, region, and residence: United States, July 1957- June 1959	22
	14.	Average annual number of physician visits and number of physician visits per per- son per year by place of visit, region, and age: United States, July 1957-June 1959	23
	15.	Percent distribution of physician visits according to place of visit by region and age: United States, July 1957-June 1959	24

9

Page

DENTAL VISITS

Table 16.	Average annual	number of denta	l visits and number	of dental	visits per person per	
	year by region	and residence:	United States, July	1957-June	1959	25

17. Average annual number of dental visits and number of dental visits per person per year by region and age: United States, July 1957-June 1959----- 25

POPULATION

- 18. Population used in obtaining rates shown in this publication by residence, age, and region: United States, July 1957-June 1959----- 26
- 19. Population used in obtaining rates shown in this publication by selected characteristics and region: United States, July 1957-June 1959----- 27

Table 1. Average number and percent distribution of persons according to presence of chronic conditions and limitation of activity by region and residence: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II

			Persons with 1+ chronic conditions				Persons with 1+ chronic conditions		
Region and residence	A11 persons	Persons with no chronic condi- tions	Total	With any degree of chronic limitation of ac- tivity	All persons	Persons with no chronic condi- tions	Total	With any degree of chronic limitation of ac- tivity	
	Aver	age numbe tho	sons in	Р	ercent di	stributi	on		
All regions	169,835	100,325	69,510	16,919	100.0	59.1	40.9	10.0	
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	102,900 46,783 20,151	60,645 27,890 11,790	42,255 18,893 8,361	9,991 4,431 2,497	100.0 100.0 100.0	58.9 59.6 58.5	41.1 40.4 41.5	9.7 9.5 12.4	
Northeast	42,379	25,211	17,168	4,030	100.0	59.5	40.5	9.5	
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	31,443 9,020 1,916	18,704 5,405 1,102	12,738 3,616 814	3,031 788 212	100.0 100.0 100.0	59.5 59.9 57.5	40.5 40.1 42.5	9.6 8.7 11.1	
North Central	51,509	30,308	21,201	5,049	100.0	58.8	41.2	9.8	
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	31,181 13,387 6,941	18,355 7,859 4,093	12,825 5,528 2,847	2,963 1,318 768	100.0 100.0 100.0	58.9 58.7 59.0	41.1 41.3 41.0	9.5 9.8 11.1	
South	51,622	31,233	20,388	5,427	100.0	60.5	39.5	10.5	
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	25,130 16,951 9,542	15,241 10,371 5,621	9,888 6,579 3,921	2,426 1,686 1,315	100.0 100.0 100.0	60.6 61.2 58.9	39.3 38.8 41.1	9.7 9.9 13.8	
West	24,325	13,573	10,752	2,413	100.0	55.8	44.2	9.9	
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	15,147 7,425 1,753	8,344 4,256 974	6,803 3,170 779	1,570 640 203	100.0 100.0 100.0	55.1 57.3 55.6	44.9 42.7 44.4	10.4 8.6 11.6	

П

Table 2. Average number and percent distribution of persons according to presence of chronic conditions and limitation of activity by region and age: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

			Person chronic	s with 1+ conditions			Persons with 1+ chronic conditions	
Region and age All person	All persons	vith no chronic condi- tions	Total	With any degree of chronic limitation of ac- tivity	All persons	vith no chronic condi- tions	Total	With any degree of chronic limitation of ac- tivity
	Aver	age numbe tho	er of per ousands	sons in	P	ercent di	stributi	on
All regions						r	ľ	1
All ages	169,835	100,325	69,510	16,919	100.0	59.1	40.9	10.0
0-24 25-44	74,826 45,579	59,122 23,919	15,703 21,660	1,631 3,376	100.0 100.0	79.0 52.5	21.0 47.5	2.2 7.4
45-64 65 +	34,763 14,667	13,954 3,329	20,809 11,338	5,711 6,201	100.0 100.0	40.1 22.7	59.9 77.3	16.4 42.3
Northeast						•		
All ages	42,379	25,211	17,168	4,030	100.0	59.5	40.5	9.5
0-24 25-44	16,887 11,765	13,282 6,598	3,605 5,167	373 752	100.0 100.0	78.7 56.1	21.3 43.9	2.2 6.4
45-64 65+	9,799 3,928	4,345 986	5,454 2,942	1,401 1,504	100.0 100.0	44.3 25.1	55.7 74.9	14.3 38.3
North Central								
All ages	51,509	30,308	21,201	5,049	100.0	58.8	41.2	9.8
0-24 25-44	22,794 13,859	18,114 7,067	4,680 6,792	472 999	100.0 100.0	79.5 51.0	20.5 49.0	2.1 7.2
45-64 65 +	10,267 4,588	4,041 1,084	6,226 3,504	1,655 1,922	100.0 100.0	39.4 23.6	60.6 76.4	16.1 41.9
South								
All ages	51,622	31,233	20,388	5,427	100.0	60.5	39.5	10.5
0-24 25-44	24,273 13,209	19,551 7,068	4,721 6,141	526 1,061	100.0 100.0	80.5 53.5	19.4 46.5	2.2 8.0
45-64 65+	10,036 4,105	3,821 794	6,215 3,311	1,881 1,959	100.0 100.0	38.1 19.3	61.9 80.7	18.7 47.7
West								
All ages	24,325	13,573	10,752	2,413	100.0	55.8	44.2	9.9
0-24 25-44	10,872 6,747	8,175 3,187	2,697 3,560	259 564	100.0 100.0	75.2 47.2	24.8 52.8	2.4 8.4
45-64 65+	4,661 2,046	1,747 465	2,914 1,581	774 816	100.0 100.0	37.5 22.7	62.5 77.3	16.6 39.9

Table 3. Average annual number of disability days and number of days per person per year by region and residence: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix 1. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix 1]

Region and residence	Restricted- activity days	Bed- disability days	Work-loss days for usually working persons 17+	Restricted- activity days	Bed- disability days	Work-loss days for usually working persons 17+	
	Average numb in	er of disabi thousands	lity days	Number of days per person per year			
All regions	3,035,325	1,148,768	376,250	17.9	6.8	6.3	
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	1,797,285 829,899 408,141	701,519 305,838 141,411	233,903 89,191 53,156	17.5 17.7 20.3	6.8 6.5 7.0	6.1 6.1 8.6	
Northeast	722,824	266,237	102,733	17.1	6.3	6.4	
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm North Central	546,408 142,791 33,624 839 542	201,495 50,853 13,889 315 502	79,688 17,718 5,327 98,175	17.4 15.8 17.5	6.4 5.6 7.2	6.5 5.9 8.7	
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	507,786 215,481 116,275	204,256 77,724 33,522	61,385 22,229 14,561	16.3 16.1 16.8	6.6 5.8 4.8	5.4 5.3 6.7	
South	1,026,876	400,884	124,903	19.9	7.8	7.1	
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	457,201 343,783 225,892	186,771 130,413 83,700	58,972 37,496 28,435	18.2 20.3 23.7	7.4 7.7 8.8	6.3 7.2 10.1	
West	446,083	166,146	50,439	18.3	6.8	6.1	
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	285,890 127,843 32,349	108,997 46,848 10,300	33,858 11,748 4,833	18.9 17.2 18.5	7.2 6.3 5.9	6.2 5.4 8.2	

Table 4. Average annual number of disability days and number of days per person per year by region and age: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix I]

Region and age	Restricted- activity days	Bed- disability days	Work-loss days for usually working persons 17+	Restricted- activity days	Bed- disability days	Work-loss days for usually working persons 17+	
	Average numb in	er of disabi thousands	lity days.	Number of da	Number of days per perso		
<u>All regions</u>		1					
All ages	3,035,325	1,148,768	376,250	17.9	6.8	6.3	
0-24 25-44	959,007 659,813	429,749 243,756	36,108 ¹ 150,782	12.8 14.5	5.7 5.3	5.2 ¹ 5.3	
45-64 65 +	791,623 624,881	266,635 208,628	162,828 26,531	22.8 42.6	7.7 14.2	7.6 9.8	
Northeast							
All ages	722,824	266,237	102,733	17.1	6.3	6.4	
0-24	236,103 159,612	99,792 61,588	8,742 ¹ 41,000	14.0 13.6	5.9 5.2	5.1 ¹ 5.6	
45-64 65+	194,117 132,992	61,433 43,424	46,887 6,104	19.8 33.9	6.3 11.1	7.6 8.4	
North Central			i.				
All ages	839,542	315,502	98,175	16.3	6.1	5.5	
0-24 25-44	257,047 181,772	119,666 64,367	9,184 ¹ 38,876	11.3 13.1	5.2 4.6	4.5 ¹ 4.6	
45-64 65+	211,600 189,123	69,100 62,368	42,639 7,476	20.6 41.2	6.7 13.6	6.7 8.8	
South							
All ages	1,026,876	400,884	124,903	19.9	7.8	7.1	
0-24 25-44	301,669 209,138	138,688 78,138	14,249 ¹ 47,571	12.4 15.8	5.7 5.9	6.0 ¹ 5.7	
45-64 65+	282,305 233,764	100,706 83,353	52,896 10,187	28.1 56.9	10.0 20.3	8.8 13.3	
West			-				
All ages	446,083	166,146	50,439	18.3	6.8	6.1	
0-24 25-44	164,189 109,291	71,604 39,663	3,933 ¹ 23,335	15.1 16.2	6.6 5.9	4.7 ¹ 5.6	
45-64 65+	103,600 69,002	35,396 19,483	20,407 2,765	22.2 33.7	7.6 9.5	7.0 7.5	

 $^{1}\ensuremath{\,\text{lncludes}}$ work-loss days for persons 17-24 years only.

Table 5. Prevalence of selected chronic conditions by region and sex: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix F. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix []

	Region						
Sex and selected conditions	All regions	North- east	North Central	South	West		
Both sexes	Numbe	r of chron	nic conditi	ons in tho	usands		
Heart conditions	5,013	1,291	1,495	1,508	720		
High blood pressure	5,234	1,313	1,475	1,767	680		
Diabetes	1,530	478	474	427	152		
Peptic ulcer	2,440	570	738	756	376		
Arthritis and rheumatism	10,845	2,494	3,346	3,431	1,574		
Hernia	2,539	640	811	727	361		
Asthma-hav fever	9,225	2.079	2,534	2.754	1.858		
Chronic bronchitis	1,980	470	599	577	333		
Chronic sinusitis	9,941	1,931	3,615	2,899	1,495		
Visual impairments	3.048	753	810	1.060	425		
Hearing impairments	5,798	1,570	1.747	1,495	986		
Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk	936	188	302	323	123		
Male			•				
Heart conditions	2,529	622	763	796	348		
High blood pressure	1,498	354	409	532	203		
Diabetes	660	201	201	185	72		
Peptic ulcer	1,771	403	539	554	275		
Arthritis and rheumatism	3,806	763	1,230	1,254	559		
Hernia	1,916	493	595	562	266		
Asthma-hay fever	4,556	1,078	1,317	1.311	850		
Chronic bronchitis	957	226	295	278	158		
Chronic sinusitis	4,320	867	1,634	1,196	624		
Visual impairments	1,476	340	410	504	222		
Hearing impairments	3,277	851	993	863	570		
Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk	510	107	161	172	70		
Female							
Heart conditions	2,484	669	732	71 1	372		
High blood pressure	3,736	958	1,066	1,235	477		
Diabetes	871	277	272	243	80		
Peptic ulcer	669	168	199	201	101		
Arthritis and rheumatism	7,038	1,731	2,116	2,176	1,015		
Hernia	623	146	216	166	95		
Asthma-hay fever	4,669	1,001	1,217	1,443	1,008		
Chronic bronchitis	1,023	244	304	299	175		
Chronic sinusitis	5,621	1,064	1,982	1,703	872		
Visual impairments	1.571	412	400	556	203		
Hearing impairments	2,521	719	754	632	416		
Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk	426	81	141	151	53		
	L						

Table 6. Prevalence of selected chronic conditions per 1,000 population by region and sex: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

	Region					
Sex and selected conditions	All regions	North- east	North Central	South	West	
<u>Both sexes</u>		Rate pe	r 1,000 po	pulation		
Heart conditions	29.5	30.5	29.0	29.2	29.6	
High blood pressure	30.8	31.0	28.6	34.2	28.0	
Diabetes	9.0	11.3	9.2	8.3	6.2	
Peptic ulcer	14.4	13.5	14.3	14.6	15.5	
Arthritis and rheumatism	63.9	58.8	65.0	66.5	64.7	
Hernia	14.9	15.1	15.7	14.1	14.8	
Asthma-hay fever	54.3	49.1	49.2	53.3	76.4	
Chronic bronchitis	11.7	11.1	11.6	11.2	13.7	
Chronic sinusitis	58.5	45.6	70.2	56.2	61.5	
Visual impairments	17.9	17.8	15.7	20.5	17.5	
Hearing impairments	34.1	37.0	33.9	29.0	40.5	
Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk	5.5	4.4	5.9	6.3	5.1	
Male						
Heart conditions	30.6	30.2	30.1	32.0	29.6	
High blood pressure	18.1	17.2	16.1	21.4	17.3	
Diabetes	8.0	9.8	7.9	7.4	6.1	
Peptic ulcer	21.4	19.6	21.2	22.3	23.4	
Arthritis and rheumatism	46.1	37.1	48.5	50.4	47.5	
Hernia	23.2	23.9	23.4	22.6	22.6	
Asthma-hay fever	55.1	52.4	51.9	52.7	72.2	
Chronic bronchitis	11.6	11.0	11.6	11.2	13.4	
Chronic sinusitis	52.3	42.1	64.4	48.0	53.0	
Visual impairments	17.9	16.5	16.2	20.2	18.9	
Hearing impairments	39.7	41.3	39.1	34.7	48.4	
Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk	6.2	5.2	6.3	6.9	5.9	
Female						
Heart conditions	28.5	30.7	28.0	26.6	29.6	
High blood pressure	42.8	44.0	40.8	46.2	38.0	
Diabetes	10.0	12.7	10.4	9.1	6.4	
Peptic ulcer	7.7	7.7	7.6	7.5	8.0	
Arthritis and rheumatism	80.7	79.4	81.0	81.4	80.8	
Hernia	7.1	6.7	8.3	6.2	7.6	
Asthma-hay fever	53.5	45.9	46.6	54.0	80.2	
Chronic bronchitis	11.7	11.2	11.6	11.2	13.9	
Chronic sinusitis	64.5	48.8	75.9	63.7	69.4	
Visual impairments	18.0	18.9	15.3	20.8	16.2	
Hearing impairments	28.9	33.0	28.9	23.6	33.1	
Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk	4.9	3.7	5.4	5.6	4.2	

Table 7. Prevalence of selected chronic conditions by region and residence: United States, July 1957-June 1959

,

p

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix I]

All regions North east South West Utban Number of chronic conditions in thousands Number of chronic conditions in thousands Heart conditions		Region							
Urban Number of chronic conditions in thousands Heart conditions 3,037 955 904 688 489 High blood pressure 3,250 1,014 947 811 478 Diabetes 954 366 289 189 109 Peptic ulcer 1,444 432 449 321 243 Arthrits and rheumatism 6,442 1,857 1,968 1,864 1,014 Astma-hay fever 5,684 1,516 1,884 1,431 1445 2072 1,435 1129 119 Chronic bronhitis 5,772 1,346 1,64 1,029 650 664 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk- 577 142 191 161 82 Nisbetes 1,306 271 377 486 174 High blood pressure 1,308 276 99 117 140 (*) Peptic locer 658 115 188 256 99 117	Residence and selected conditions	All regions	North- east	North Central	South	West			
Heart conditions 3,037 955 904 688 489 High blood pressure 3,250 1,014 947 811 478 Diabetes 953 366 289 109 103 Peptic ulcer 1,444 432 449 321 243 Arthritis and rheumatism 6,442 1,857 1,968 1,584 1,033 Asthma-hay fever 5,684 1,516 1,583 1,444 1,141 Chronic bronchitis 5,772 1,346 2,072 1,435 916 Visual impairments 1,810 552 520 452 286 Heart conditions 1,308 271 377 486 174 Heart conditions 1,308 271 377 486 174 High blood pressure 1,308 271 377 486 174 High blood pressure 1,308 271 377 486 174 Heart conditions 1,267 242 333 528 164 Diabetes 1,267 244	Urban	Numbe	r of chron	ic conditi	ons in tho	usands			
nitgh blod pressure- 3,250 1,014 947 811 478 Diabetes 954 366 289 189 109 Peptic ulcer 1,444 432 449 321 243 Arthritis and rheumatism 1,437 445 430 341 221 Asthma-hay fever 1,437 445 430 341 221 Chronic bronchitis 1,437 445 430 341 221 Chronic sinustis	Heart conditions	3.037	955	904	688	489			
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	High blood pressure Diabetes	3,250 954	1,014 366	947 289	811 189	478 109			
Arthritis and rheumatism 6,442 1,857 1,968 1,584 1,033 Mernia 1,437 445 445 440 341 221 Asthma-hay fever 5,684 1,516 1,583 1,444 1,141 I,229 354 2,507 1,346 2,072 1,435 918 Visual impairments 1,810 552 520 642 286 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 5,772 1,346 1,64 1,029 650 644 Night bood pressure 1,308 271 337 486 174 1161 82 Meart conditions 1,308 271 337 486 174 104 (*) Paptic ulcer 658 115 188 256 99 394 Arthma-hay fever 2,664 479 801 900 394 Asthma-hay fever 364 1,550 185 355 106 Chronic bronchitis 3049 468 1,010 1,000 477 98 (*) Visual	Peptic ulcer	1,444	432	449	321	243			
Hernis 1,437 445 430 341 221 Asthma-hay fever 5,684 1,516 1,583 1,444 1,141 Chronic binustis 1,229 354 359 2297 219 Visual impairments 1,810 552 520 452 286 Hearing impairments 3,486 1,164 1,029 650 644 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 577 1,42 191 161 82 Heart conditions 1,308 271 377 486 174 164 82 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 577 1,267 242 333 528 164 Diabetes 1,267 242 333 528 164 Diabetes 1,267 242 219 104 (*) Asthma-hay fever 2,664 417 801 990 394 Herria 658 115 188 256 99 116 100 100 451 100 17 104 3049 468	Arthritis and rheumatism	6,442	1,857	1,968	1,584	1,033			
Asthma-hay fever	Hernia	1,437	445	430	341	221			
Chronic bronchitis	Asthma-hay fever	5,684	1,516	1,583	1,444	1,141			
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Chronic bronchitis	1,229	354	359	297	219			
visual impairments	Chronic sinusitis	5,772	1,346	2,072	1,435	918			
Hearing impairments	Visual impairments	1,810	· 552	520	452	286			
Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 577 142 191 161 82 Rural nonfarm 1,308 271 377 486 174 High blood pressure	Hearing impairments	3,486	1,164	1,029	650	644			
Rural nonfarm 1,308 271 377 486 174 High blood pressure	Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk	577	142	191	101	82			
Heart conditions High blood pressure Diabetes1,308 1,267 242 333 380271 377 377 2486 489 117174 140Peptic ulcer Arthritis and rheumatism Parthritis and rheumatism Chronic bronchitis Chronic bronchitis Chronic bronchitis Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk Rural farm1,308 2,664 479 692271 242 333 389 89 117377 486 140 (*)Heart conditions Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk Liss of major extremities 1,7392,620 	<u>Rural nonfarm</u>				"	-			
High blood pressure 1,267 242 333 528 164 Diabetes 380 89 117 140 (*) Peptic ulcer 658 115 188 256 99 Arthritis and rheumatism 658 115 188 256 99 Asthma-hay fever 652 144 226 219 104 Asthma-hay fever 569 99 181 190 98 Chronic bronchitis 569 99 181 190 98 Chronic sinusitis 569 99 181 190 98 Chronic sinusitis 3,049 468 1,100 1,005 475 Visual impairments 802 156 185 355 106 Heart conditions 802 156 185 355 106 High blood pressure 717 57 195 427 (*) Diabetes 197 (*) 67 98 (*) Arthritis and rheumatism 1,739 157 577 857 147	Heart conditions	1,308	271	377	486	174			
Diabetes	High blood pressure	1,267	242	333	528	164			
Peptic ulcer	Diabetes	380	. 89	117	140	(*)			
Arthritis and rheumatism 2,664 479 801 990 394 Hernia 692 144 226 219 104 Asthma-hay fever 2,620 488 638 907 587 Chronic bronchitis 569 99 181 190 98 Chronic sinusitis 3,049 468 1,100 1,005 475 Visual impairments 802 156 185 355 106 Hearing impairments 1,550 315 471 510 254 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 240 (*) 72 98 (*) Niabetes 197 (*) 67 98 (*) Peptic ulcer 337 (*) 100 179 (*) Arthritis and rheumatism 1,739 157 577 857 147 Hernia 100 179 (*) 100 179 (*) Asthma-hay fever 21 75 313 403 130 Chronic bronchitis 99 90 (*	Peptic ulcer	658	115	188	256	99			
Hernia 692 144 226 219 104 Asthma-hay fever $2,620$ 488 638 907 587 Chronic bronchitis 569 99 181 190 98 Chronic sinusitis $3,049$ 468 $1,100$ $1,005$ 475 Visual impairments 802 156 185 355 106 Hearing impairments 802 156 185 355 254 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 240 $(*)$ 72 98 $(*)$ Heart conditions $Rural farm$ $1,550$ 315 471 510 254 Heart conditions $Rural farm$ $1,777$ 57 195 427 $(*)$ Peptic ulcer 337 $(*)$ 67 98 $(*)$ Arthritis and rheumatism $1,739$ 157 577 857 147 Hernia $1,739$ 157 577 857 147 Asthma-hay fever 921 75 313 403 130 Chronic sinusitis $1,120$ 117 443 458 102 Visual impairments 762 92 247 336 88 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 119 $(*)$ $(*)$ $(*)$	Arthritis and rheumatism	2,664	479	801	990	394			
Asthma-hay fever Chronic bronchitis Shronic sinusitis2,620 569 	Hernia	692	- 144	226	219	104			
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Asthma-hay fever	2,620	488	638	907	587			
Chronic sinusitis	Chronic bronchitis	569	99	181	190	98			
Visual impairments	Chronic sinusitis	3,049	468	1,100	1,005	475			
Hearing impairments 1,550 315 471 510 254 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 240 (*) 72 98 (*) Rural farm (*) 71 510 254 Heart conditions 668 65 213 333 56 High blood pressure 717 57 195 427 (*) Diabetes 197 (*) 67 98 (*) Peptic ulcer 337 (*) 100 179 (*) Arthritis and rheumatism 1,739 157 577 857 147 Hernia 410 50 155 168 (*) Asthma-hay fever 921 75 313 403 130 Chronic bronchitis 1,120 117 443 458 102 Visual impairments 436 (*) 106 253 (*) Hearing impairments 762 92 247 336 88 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 119 (*) (*) 64 </td <td>Visual impairments</td> <td>802</td> <td>156</td> <td>185</td> <td>· 355</td> <td>106</td>	Visual impairments	802	156	185	· 355	106			
Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 240 (*) 72 98 (*) Rural farm (*) 72 98 (*) Heart conditions 668 65 213 333 56 High blood pressure 717 57 195 427 (*) Diabetes 197 (*) 67 98 (*) Peptic ulcer 337 (*) 100 179 (*) Arthritis and rheumatism 1,739 157 577 857 147 Hernia 410 50 155 168 (*) Asthma-hay fever 921 75 313 403 130 Chronic bronchitis	Hearing impairments	1,550	315	471	510	254			
Rural farm 668 65 213 333 56 High blood pressure	Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk	240	(*)	72	98	(*)			
Heart conditions	Rural farm								
High blood pressure Diabetes 717 197 57 197 195 67 427 98 $(*)$ $(*)$ Peptic ulcer Arthritis and rheumatism Hernia 337 1,739 $(*)$ 157 100 157 179 857 $(*)$ 147Asthma-hay fever Chronic bronchitis 921 182 75 182 313 (*) 403 130 130 (*)Asthma-hay fever Chronic sinusitis 921 1,120 75 182 313 403 403 130 130 (*)Visual impairments Hearing impairments Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 436 109 $(*)$ (*) $(*)$ (*) $(*)$ (*) $(*)$ (*)	Heart conditions	668	65	213	333	56			
Diabetes 197 (*) 67 98 (*) Peptic ulcer	High blood pressure	717	57	195	427	(*)			
Peptic ulcer	Diabetes	197	(*)	67	98	(*)			
Arthritis and rheumatism 1,739 157 577 857 147 Hernia 410 50 155 168 (*) Asthma-hay fever 921 75 313 403 130 Chronic bronchitis 182 (*) 59 90 (*) Chronic sinusitis 1,120 117 443 458 102 Visual impairments 762 92 247 336 88 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 119 (*) (*) 64 (*)	Peptic ulcer	337	(*)	100	179	(*)			
Hernia 410 50 155 168 (*) Asthma-hay fever 921 75 313 403 130 Chronic bronchitis 182 (*) 59 90 (*) Chronic sinusitis 1,120 117 443 458 102 Visual impairments 436 (*) 106 253 (*) Hearing impairments 762 92 247 336 88 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 119 (*) (*) 64 (*)	Arthritis and rheumatism	1,739	157	577	857	147			
Asthma-hay fever 921 75 313 403 130 Chronic bronchitis 182 (*) 59 90 (*) Chronic sinusitis 1,120 117 443 458 102 Visual impairments 436 (*) 106 253 (*) Hearing impairments 762 92 247 336 88 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 119 (*) (*) 64 (*)	Hernia	410	50	155	168	(*)			
Chronic bronchitis 182 (*) 59 90 (*) Chronic sinusitis 1,120 117 443 458 102 Visual impairments 436 (*) 106 253 (*) Hearing impairments 762 92 247 336 88 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 119 (*) (*) 64 (*)	Asthma-hay fever	921	75	313	403	130			
Chronic sinusitis 1,120 117 443 458 102 Visual impairments 436 (*) 106 253 (*) Hearing impairments 762 92 247 336 88 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 119 (*) (*) 64 (*)	Chronic bronchitis	182	(*)	59	90	(*)			
Visual impairments 436 (*) 106 253 (*) Hearing impairments 762 92 247 336 88 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 119 (*) (*) 64 (*)	Chronic sinusitis	1,120	117	443	458	102			
Hearing impairments 762 92 247 336 88 Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 119 (*) (*) 64 (*)	Visual impairments	436	(*)	106	253	(*)			
raralysis of major extremities and/or trunk 119 (*) (*) 64 (*)	Hearing impairments	762	92	247	.336				
	Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk		(*)	(*)	64	(*)			

Table 8. Prevalence of selected chronic conditions per 1,000 population by region and residence: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix I!]

ų,

·	Region				
Residence and selected conditions	All regions	North- east	North Central	South	West
Urban		Rate pe	er 1,000 pc	pulation	
Heart conditions	29.5	30.4	29.0	27.4	32.3
High blood pressure	31.6	32.2	30.4	32.3	31.6
Diabetes	9.3	11.6	9.3	7.5	7.2
Peptic ulcer	14.0	13.7	14.4	12.8	16.0
Arthritis and rheumatism	62.6	59.1	63.1	63.0	68.2
Hernia	14.0	14.2	13.8	13.6	14.6
Asthma-hay fever	55.2	48.2	50.8	57.5	75.3
Chronic bronchitis	11.9	11.3	11.5	11.8	14.5
Chronic sinusitis	56.1	42.8	66.5	57.1	60.6
Visual impairments	17.6	17.6	16.7	18.0	18.9
Hearing impairments	33.9	37.0	33.0	25.9	42.5
Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk	5.6	4.5	6.1	6.4	5.4
<u>Rural nonfarm</u>					
Heart conditions	28.0	30.0	28.2	28.7	23.4
High blood pressure	27.1	26.8	24.9	31.1	22.1
Diabetes	8.1	9.9	8.7	8.3	(*)
Peptic ulcer	14.1	12.7	14.0	15.1	13.3
Arthritis and rheumatism	56.9	53.1	59.8	58.4	53.1
Hernia	14.8	16.0	16.9	12.9	14.0
Asthma-hay fever	56.0	54.1	47.7	53.5	79.1
Chronic bronchitis	12.2	11.0	13.5	11.2	13.2
Chronic sinusitis	65.2	51.9	82.2	59.3	64.0
Visual impairments	17.1	17.3	13.8	20.9	14.3
Hearing impairments	33.1	34.9	35.2	30.1	34.2
Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk	5.1	(*)	5.4	5.8	(*)
<u>Rural farm</u>	:				
Heart conditions	33.1	33.9	30.7	34.9	31.9
High blood pressure	35.6	29.7	28.1	44.7	(*)
Diabetes	9.8	(*)	9.7	10.3	(*)
Peptic ulcer	16.7	(*)	14.4	18.8	. (*)
Arthritis and rheumatism	86.3	81.9	83.1	89.8	83.9
Hernia	20.3	26.1	22.3	17.6	(*)
Asthma-hay fever	45.7	39.1	45.1	42.2	74.2
Chronic bronchitis	9.0	(*)	8.5	9.4	(*)
Chronic sinusitis	55.6	61.1	63.8	48.0	58.2
Visual impairments	21.6	(*)	15.3	26.5	(*)
Hearing impairments	37.8	48.0	35.6	35.2	50.2
Paralysis of major extremities and/or trunk	5.9	(*)	(*)	(*)	(*)

Table 9. Average annual number and rate per 1,000 population of persons injured by region and residence: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix 1. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix 1]

	Residence								
Region	All areas	Urban	Rural nonfarm	Rural farm					
	Average number of persons injured in thousands								
All regions	46,388	27,534	13,293	5,562					
Northeast North Central South	10,649 14,289 13.880	7,680 8,931 6,540	2,428 3,432 4,662	(*) 1,926 2,678					
West	7,569	4,382	2,770	(*)					
	1	Rate per 1,0	00 populatio	on					
All regions	273.1	267.6	284.1	276.0					
Northeast North Central South West	251.3 277.4 268.9 311.2	244.3 286.4 260.2 289.3	269.2 256.4 275.0 373.1	(*) 277.5 280.7 (*)					

Table 10. Average annual number and rate per 1,000 population of persons injured by region and age: United States, July 1957-June 1959

(See headnote on table 9)

	Age								
Region	All ages	0-14	15-24	25-44	45-64	65+			
	Ave	rage numbe	r of perso	ns injured	l in thousa	nds			
All regions	46,388	16,384	6,756	11,788	8,108	3,352			
Northeast North Central South West	10,649 14,289 13,880 7,569	3,609 4,665 5,353 2,757	1,444 2,197 2,137 977	2,874 3,980 2,713 2,222	1,791 2,484 2,623 1,212	932 963 1,055 (*)			
		Rat	e per 1,00)0 populat	ion				
All regions	273.1	307.4	313.9	258.6	233.2	228.5			
Northeast North Central South West	251.3 277.4 268.9 311.2	302.1 283.8 316.2 345.1	292.3 345.6 291.0 338.9	244.3 287.2 205.4 329.3	182.8 241.9 261.4 260.0	237.3 209.9 257.0 (*)			

Table 11. Average annual number and rate per 1,000 population of persons injured according to class of accident by region and residence: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix 1. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix 1]

	Class of accident ¹					
Region and residence	All classes	Motor vehicle	While at work	Home	Other and unknown	
	Average	number of	persons in	jured in t	housands	
All regions	46,388	4,172	8,292	19,960	13,964	
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm Northeast North Central South West	27,534 13,293 5,562 10,649 14,289 13,880 7,569	2,456 1,153 (*) 880 1,476 1,126 691 Rate pe	4,717 2,486 1,088 1,744 2,803 2,505 1,240	11,700 6,013 2,248 4,473 5,815 6,175 3,496	8,660 3,640 1,663 3,552 4,196 4,074 2,142	
All regions	273.1	24.6	48.8	117.5	82.2	
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	267.6 284.1 276.0	23.9 24.6 (*)	45.8 53.1 54.0	113.7 128.5 111.6	84.2 77.8 82.5	
Northeast North Central South West	251.3 277.4 268.9 311.2	20.8 28.7 21.8 28.4	41.2 54.4 48.5 51.0	105.5 112.9 119.6 143.7	83.8 81.5 78.9 88.1	

^ISince some accidents could have been assigned to more than one class, the following procedure was used to classify injured persons to a single accident class: If a motor vehicle was involved, the accident was classified as such regardless of where the accident occurred. Work accidents were defined as those occurring to persons at work, where no motor vehicle was involved. Accidents occurring in the home and not classifiable to the two previous groups were considered as home accidents. All accidents not classifiable to the three preceding groups were assigned to the "other and unknown" group.

Table 12. Average annual number of physician visits and number of physician visits per person per year by residence, region, and age: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix I]

				Reside	nce			
Region and age	All areas	Urban	Rural nonfarm	Rural farm	All areas	Urban	Rural nonfarm	Rural farm
All regions	Average	number of in tho	physicia usands	n visits	Number	of physi person p	cian visi er year	ts per
All ages	851,651	546,231	229,304	76,116	5.0	5.3	4.9	3.8
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65+	244,472 96,485 224,597 186,936 99,161	147,559 62,130 143,710 127,143 65,690	76,527 24,684 63,771 41,997 22,325	20,386 9,672 17,116 17,796 11,146	4.6 4.5 4.9 5.4 6.8	5.0 4.8 5.1 5.6 6.9	4.5 4.4 4.8 5.5 6.7	3.0 3.3 3.9 4.2 6.0
Northeast					-			
All ages	229,243	174,177	47,138	7,927	5.4	5.5	5.2	4.1
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65 1	64,016 21,833 60,540 55,368 27,486	45,430 17,277 44,408 44,953 22,111	15,907 3,868 14,252 8,644 4,466	2,679 688 1,880 1,772 909	5.4 4.4 5.1 5.7 7.0	5.5 4.6 5.2 5.8 7.4	5.3 4.2 5.2 5.3 6.4	4.3 3.0 4.3 4.5 4.1
North Central								
All ages	239,832	152,876	59,715	27,241	4.7	4.9	4.5	3.9
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65+	68,206 27,475 62,666 53,163 28,321	41,604 18,030 40,351 34,506 18,384	19,790 5,432 15,853 12,117 6,524	6,812 4,012 6,462 6,541 3,413	4.1 4.3 4.5 5.2 6.2	4.5 4.6 4.8 5.2 6.2	4.1 3.6 4.1 5.7 6.5	2.9 4.4 4.0 4.4 5.6
South								
All ages	244,232	128,253	83,076	32,903	4.7	5.1	4.9	3.4
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65 1	70,360 31,418 62,364 50,979 29,111	35,829 16,343 33,076 28,420 14,586	26,369 11,019 22,531 14,751 8,406	8,162 4,056 6,757 7,808 6,120	4.2 4.3 4.7 5.1 7.1	4.7 4.7 4.9 5.4 7.3	4.3 4.8 5.0 5.2 6.8	2.5 2.6 3.5 4.0 7.0
West								
All ages	138,344	90,925	39,374	8,046	5.7	6.0	5.3	4.6
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65+	41,891 15,759 39,027 27,425 14,243	24,697 10,480 25,875 19,265 10,609	14,461 4,364 11,135 6,486 2,929	2,733 916 2,017 1,675 705	5.2 5.5 5.8 5.9 7.0	5.5 5.8 6.2 6.0 7.1	4.9 5.2 5.2 6.0 7.1	4.8 4.2 4.7 4.4 4.9

Table 13. Average annual number of physician visits and number of physician visits per person per year by place of visit, region, and residence: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

		Place of visit									
Region and residence	Total	Office	Home	Other and unknown	Total	Office	Home	Other and unknown			
	Average	number of in tho	physicia usands	n visits	Number of physician visits per person per year						
All regions	851,651	560,182	83,025	208,444	5.0	3.3	0.5	1.2			
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	546,231 229,304 76,116	346,105 156,188 57,889	58,942 18,831 5,252	141,184 54,285 12,975	5.3 4.9 3.8	3.4 3.3 2.9	0.6 0.4 0.3	1.4 1.2 0.6			
Northeast	229,243	134,781	34,768	59,693	5.4	3.2	0.8	1.4			
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	174,177 47,138 7,927	100,380 29,118 5,283	27,244 6,637 887	46,553 11,383 1,758	5.5 5.2 4.1	3.2 3.2 2.8	0.9 0.7 0.5	1.5 1.3 0.9			
North Central	239,832	108,809	19,278	51,004	4./	3.3	0.4	1.0			
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	152,876 59,715 27,241	103,060 43,464 22,345	14,310 4,091 877	35,505 12,160 4,019	4.9 4.5 3.9	3.3 3.2 3.2	0.5 0.3 0.1	1.1 0.9 0.6			
South	244,232	160,837	20,778	62,618	4.7	3.1	0.4	1.2			
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	128,253 83,076 32,903	80,470 56,426 23,941	11,905 5,754 3,118	35,878 20,896 5,843	5.1 4.9 3.4	3.2 3.3 2.5	0.5 0.3 0.3	1.4 1.2 0.6			
West	138,344	95,694	8,201	34,449	5.7	3.9	0.3	1.4			
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	90,925 39,374 8,046	62,194 27,180 6,321	5,483 2,349 370	23,248 9,846 1,355	6.0 5.3 4.6	4.1 3.7 3.6	0.4 0.3 0.2	1.5 1.3 0.8			

Table 14. Average annual number of physician visits and number of physician visits per person per year by place of visit, region, and age: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix I]

	Place of visit							
Region and age	Total	Office	Home	Other and unknown	Total	Office	Home	Other and unknown
	Average n	umber of in thou	physician sands	visits	Number	of physi person p	cian visi er year	ts per
All regions							-	
All ages	851,651	560,182	83,025	208,444	5.0	3.3	0.5	1.2
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65 1	244,472 96,485 224,597 186,936 99,161	138,044 65,759 163,839 132,808 59,732	24,985 5,209 13,344 16,892 22,595	81,443 25,518 47,413 37,236 16,834	4.6 4.5 4.9 5.4 6.8	2.6 3.1 3.6 3.8 4.1	0.5 0.2 0.3 0.5 1.5	1.5 1.2 1.0 1.1 1.1
Northeast								
All ages	229,243	134,781	34,768	59,693	5.4	3.2	0.8	1.4
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65+	64,016 21,833 60,540 55,368 27,486	27,383 14,010 41,088 37,439 14,862	12,094 2,052 5,519 6,946 8,157	24,539 5,772 13,933 10,983 4,466	5.4 4.4 5.1 5.7 7.0	2.3 2.8 3.5 3.8 3.8	1.0 0.4 0.5 0.7 2.1	2.1 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1
North Central								
All ages	239,832	168,869	19,278	51,684	4.7	3.3	0.4	1.0
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65+	68,206 27,475 62,666 53,163 28,321	42,961 19,572 48,739 39,791 17,807	4,984 1,325 2,775 4,135 6,059	20,261 6,579 11,152 9,237 4,455	4.1 4.3 4.5 5.2 6.2	2.6 3.1 3.5 3.9 3.9	0.3 0.2 0.2 0.4 1.3	1.2 1.0 0.8 0.9 1.0
South								
All ages	244,232	160,837	20,778	62,618	4.7	3.1	0.4	1.2
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65+	70,360 31,418 62,364 50,979 29,111	41,672 21,223 44,540 35,730 17,671	5,746 1,206 3,564 3,830 6,431	22,941 8,988 14,260 11,419 5,010	4.2 4.3 4.7 5.1 7.1	2.5 2.9 3.4 3.6 4.3	0.3 0.2 0.3 0.4 1.6	1.4 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.2
West								
All ages	138,344	95,694	8,201	34,449	5.7	3.9	0.3	1.4
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65+	41,891 15,759 39,027 27,425 14,243	26,028 10,954 29,472 19,848 9,392	2,161 626 1,487 1,980 1,948	13,702 4,179 8,068 5,597 2,902	5.2 5.5 5.8 5.9 7.0	3.3 3.8 4.4 4.3 4.6	0.3 0.2 0.4 1.0	1.7 1.4 1.2 1.2 1.4

Table 15. Percent distribution of physician visits according to place of visit by region and age: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

	Place of visit				
Region and age	Total	Office	Home	Other and unknown	
All regions		Percent di	stribution		
All ages	100.0	65.8	9.7	24.5	
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65+	100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0	56.5 68.2 72.9 71.0 60.2	10.2 5.4 5.9 9.0 22.8	33.3 26.4 21.1 19.9 17.0	
Northeast					
All ages	100.0	58.8	15.2	26.0	
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65+	100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0	42.8 64.2 67.9 67.6 54.1	18.9 9.4 9.1 12.5 29.7	38.3 26.4 23.0 19.8 16.2	
North Central					
All ages	100.0	70.4	8.0	21.6	
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65+	100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0	63.0 71.2 77.8 74.8 62.9	7.3 4.8 4.4 7.8 21.4	29.7 23.9 17.8 17.4 15.7	
South					
All ages	100.0	65.9	8.5	• 25.6	
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65+	100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0	59.2 67.6 71.4 70.1 60.7	8.2 3.8 5.7 7.5 22.1	32.6 28.6 22.9 22.4 17.2	
West					
All ages	100.0	69.2	5.9	24.9	
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65+	100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0	62.1 69.5 75.5 72.4 65.9	5.2 4.0 3.8 7.2 13.7	32.7 26.5 20.7 20.4 20.4	

Table 16. Average annual number of dental visits and number of dental visits per person per year by region and residence: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix 1. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix 1]

	Region					
Residence	All regions	North- east	North Central	South	West	
	Average number of dental visits in thousands				ousands	
All areas	258,468	89,072	77,150	51,773	40,473	
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	180,504 60,844 17,120	72,205 14,961 1,906	52,231 17,783 7,136	29,035 16,460 6,277	27,033 11,639 1,800	
	Numb	er of denta	l visits pe	r person pe	r year	
All areas	1.5	2.1	1.5	1.0	1.7	
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	1.8 1.3 0.8	2.3 1.7 1.0	1.7 1.3 1.0	1.2 1.0 0.7	1.8 1.6 1.0	

Table 17. Average annual number of dental visits and number of dental visits per person per year by region and age: United States, July 1957-June 1959

(See	headnote	on	table	16)
------	----------	----	-------	-----

	Region					
Age	All regions	North- east	North Central	South	West	
	Aver	age number	of dental v	isits in th	ousands	
All ages	258,468	89,072	77,150	51,773	40,473	
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65+	66,883 47,381 80,224 52,342 11,638 Numb	21,127 16,863 28,350 19,000 3,733 er of denta	22,323 13,986 22,673 14,761 3,407	12,222 9,844 17,271 10,070 2,365 r person pe	11,211 6,688 11,930 8,511 2,133 r year	
All ages	1.5	2.1	1.5	1.0	1.7	
0-14 15-24 25-44 45-64 65+	1.3 2.2 1.8 1.5 0.8	1.8 3.4 2.4 1.9 1.0	1.4 2.2 1.6 1.4 0.7	0.7 1.3 1.3 1.0 0.6	1.4 2.3 1.8 1.8 1.8	

Table 18. Population used in obtaining rates shown in this publication by residence, age, and region: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix II]

	Region						
Residence and age	Total	North- east	North Central	South	West		
		Popula	tion in tho	usands			
All areas	169,835	42,379	51,509	51,622	24,325		
0-24	74,826	16,887	22,794	24,273	10,872		
0-14	53,303	11,947	16,437	16,930	7,988		
15-24	21,523	4,940	6,357	7,343	2,883		
25-44	45,579	11,765	13,859	13,209	6,747		
45-64	34,763	9,799	10,267	10,036	4,661		
65+	14,667	3,928	4,588	4,105	2,046		
Urban	102,900	31,443	31,181	25,130	15,147		
0-24	42,661	12,082	13,169	11,102	6,308		
0-14	29,639	8,298	9,240	7,609	4,491		
15-24	13,022	3,784	3,928	3,493	1,817		
25-44	27,928	8,579	8,387	6,803	4,160		
45-64	22,854	7,779	6,656	5,227	3,192		
65+	9,457	3,004	2,968	1,997	1,488		
Rural nonfarm	46,783	9,020	13,387	16,951	7,425		
0-24	22,483	3,943	6,394	8,377	3,769		
0-14	16,876	3,018	4,872	6,063	2,922		
15-24	5,607	925	1,522	2,314	847		
25-44	13,278	2,752	3,873	4,497	2,156		
45-64	7,674	1,625	2,114	2,849	1,087		
65+	. 3, 348	700	1,007	1,228	414		
Rural farm	20,151	1,916	6,941	9,542	1,753		
0-24	9,682	862	3,232	4,793	795		
0-14	6,788	630	2,325	3,257	575		
15-24	2,895	232	907	1,536	220		
25-44	4,373	435	1,599	1,909	431		
45-64	4,234	395	1,497	1,960	382		
65+	1,862	224	613	880	145		

NOTE: For official population estimates for more general use, see Bureau of the Census reports on the civilian population of the United States, in <u>Current Population Reports</u>: Series P-20, P-25, P-50, P-57, and P-60.

Table 19. Population used in obtaining rates shown in this publication by selected characteristics and region: United States, July 1957-June 1959

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and tables of sampling errors are given in Appendix 1. Definitions of terms are given in Appendix 1]

	Region					
Characteristic	All areas	North- east	North Central	South	West	
Total population	Population in thousands					
Both sexes	169,835	42,379	51,509	51,622	24,325	
Male Female	82,633 87,202	20,590 21,788	25,382 26,127	24,896 26,726	11,765 12,561	
Usually working population-17+						
Total	59,393	15,946	17,731	17,477	8,239	
Urban Rural nonfarm Rural farm	38,610 14,596 6,187	12,326 3,007 613	11,391 4,173 2,167	9,415 5,240 2,821	5,478 2,175 586	
17-24 25-44 45-64 65+	6,975 28,255 21,452 2,711	1,709 7,358 6,155 724	2,060 8,434 6,384 854	2,372 8,328 6,012 765	833 4,136 2,902 369	

NOTE: For official population estimates for more general use, see Bureau of the Census reports on the civilian population of the United States, in <u>Current Population Reports</u>: Series P-20, P-25, P-50, P-57, and P-60.

,

,

APPENDIX |

TECHNICAL NOTES ON METHODS

Background of This Report

This report on <u>Selected Health Characteristics By</u> <u>Geographic Regions</u> is one of a series of statistical reports prepared by the U. S. National Health Survey. It is based on information collected in a continuing nationwide sample of households in the Health Interview Survey, which is a main aspect of the program.

The Health Interview Survey utilizes a questionnaire which, in addition to personal and demographic characteristics, collects information on illnesses, injuries, chronic conditions, medical care, dental care, and other health topics. As data relating to each of these various broad subject areas are tabulated and analyzed, separate reports are issued covering one or more specific topics. The present report is based on the consolidated sample for 104 weeks of interviewing during the period July 1957-June 1959.

The population covered by the sample for the Health Interview Survey is the civilian noninstitutional population of the United States living at the time of the interview. The sample does not include members of the Armed Forces, U. S. nationals living in foreign countries, and crews of vessels.

Statistical Design of the Health Interview Survey

<u>General plan.</u>—The sampling plan of the survey follows a multistage probability design which permits a continuous sampling of the civilian population of the United States. The first stage of this design consists of drawing a sample of 500 from the 1,900 geographically defined Primary Sampling Units (PSU's) into which the United States has been divided. A PSU is a county, a group of contiguous counties, or a Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area.

With no loss in general understanding, the remaining stages can be telescoped and treated in this discussion as an ultimate stage. Within PSU's then, ultimate stage units called segments are defined, also geographically, in such a manner that each segment contains an expected six households in the sample. Each week a random sample of about 120 segments is drawn. In the approximately 700 households in those segments, household members are interviewed concerning factors related to health.

Since the household members included each week are a representative sample of the population, samples for successive weeks can be combined into larger samples. Thus, the design permits both continuous measurement of characteristics of high incidence or prevalence in the population, and through the larger consolidated samples, more detailed analysis of less common characteristics and smaller categories. The continuous collection has administrative and operational advantages as well as technical assets, since it permits field work to be handled with an experienced, stable staff.

Sample size and geographic detail.—Over the 24-month period ending June 1959, the sample included approximately 235,000 persons from 73,000 households in 12,200 segments. The over-all sample was designed in such a fashion that tabulations can be provided for various geographic sections of the United States and for urban and rural sectors of the Nation.

<u>Collection of data.</u>—The field operations for the household survey are performed by the Bureau of the Census under specifications established by the Public Health Service. In accordance with these specifications the Bureau of the Census designs and selects the sample, conducts the field interviewing acting as collecting agent for the Public Health Service, and edits and codes the questionnaires. Tabulations are prepared by the Public Health Service using the Bureau of the Census electronic computers.

Estimating methods.—Each statistic produced by the survey—for example, the number of work-loss days occurring in a specified period—is the result of two stages of ratio estimation. In the first of these, the factor is the ratio of the 1950 decennial population count to the 1950 estimated population in the U.S. National Health Survey's first-stage sample of PSU's. These factors are applied for more than 50 color-residence classes.

Later, ratios of sample-produced estimates of the population to official Bureau of the Census figures for current population in about 60 age-sex-color classes are computed, and serve as second-stage factors for ratio estimating.

The effect of the ratio estimating process is to make the sample closely representative of the population by age, sex, color, and residence, thus reducing sampling variance.

As noted, each week's sample represents the population living during that week as well as characteristics of the population. Consolidation of samples over a time period, say a calendar quarter, produces estimates of average characteristics of the U.S. population for that calendar quarter. Similarly, population or prevalence data for a 2-year period are averages of the eight quarterly figures.

For statistics measuring the number of occurrences during a specified time period, such as number of bed-disability days, a similar computational procedure is used, but the statistics have a different interpretation. For the disability-day items, the questionnaire asks for the respondent's experience over the two calendar weeks prior to the week of interview. In such instances the estimated quarterly total for the statistic is simply 6.5 times the average two-week estimate produced by the 13 successive samples taken during the period. The annual total is the sum of the four quarters. Thus, the experience of persons interviewed during a year—experience which actually occurred for each person in a two-calendar-week interval prior to week of interview—is treated in analysis as though it measured the total of such experience occurring in the year. Such interpretation leads to no significant bias.

General Qualifications

<u>Nonresponse.</u>—Data were adjusted for nonresponse by a procedure which imputes to persons in a household which was not interviewed the characteristics of persons in households in the same segment which were interviewed. The total noninterview rate was 5 percent; 1 percent was refusal, and the remainder was primarily due to the failure to find any eligible household respondent after repeated trials.

The interview process.—The statistics presented in this report are based on replies secured in interviews of persons in the sampled households. Each person 18 years and over, available at the time of interview, was interviewed individually. Proxy respondents within the household were employed for children and for adults not available at the time of the interview, provided the respondent was closely related to the person about whom information was being obtained.

There are limitations to the accuracy of diagnostic and other information collected in household interviews. For diagnostic information, the household respondent can, at best, pass on to the interviewer only the information the physician has given to the family. For conditions not medically attended, diagnostic information is often no more than a description of symptoms. However, other facts, such as the number of disability days caused by the condition, can be obtained more accurately from household members than from any other source since only the persons concerned are in a position to report information of this type.

Population figures .- Some of the published tables include population figures for specified categories. Except for certain over-all totals by age and sex, which are adjusted to independent estimates, these figures are based on the sample of households in the U. S. National Health Survey. They are given primarily for the purpose of providing denominators for rate computation, and for this purpose are more appropriate for use with the accompanying measures of health characteristics than other population data that may be available. In some instances they will permit users to recombine published data into classes more suitable to their specific needs. With the exception of the over-all totals by age and sex, mentioned above, the population figures may in some cases differ from corresponding figures (which are derived from different sources) published in reports of the Bureau of the Census. For population data for general use, see the official estimates presented in Bureau of the Census reports in the P-20, P-25, P-50, P-57, and P-60 series.

Reliability of Estimates

Since the estimates are based on a sample, they will differ somewhat from the figures that would have been obtained if a complete census had been taken using the same schedules, instructions, and interviewing personnel and procedures. As in any survey, the results are also subject to measurement error.

The standard error is primarily a measure of sampling variability, that is, the variations that might occur by chance because only a sample of the population is surveyed. As calculated for this report, the standard error also reflects part of the variation which arises in the measurement process. It does not include estimates of any biases which might lie in the data. The chances are about 68 out of 100 that an estimate from the sample would differ from a complete census by less than the standard error. The chances are about 95 out of 100 that the difference would be less than twice the standard error and about 99 out of 100 that it would be less than 2½ times as large.

In order to derive standard errors which would be applicable to a wide variety of health statistics and which could be prepared at a moderate cost, a number of approximations were required. As a result, the tables of standard errors shown in this Appendix should be interpreted as providing an estimate of approximate standard error rather than as the precise standard error for any specific statistic.

The following rules will enable the reader to determine the sampling errors for the data contained in this report.

1. Estimates of aggregates: Approximate standard errors of estimates of aggregates, such as the number of persons with one or more chronic conditions, the number of physician or dental visits, and the number of disability days, are obtained from appropriate columns of table I. Example:

The average number of persons with 1+ chronic conditions in the Northeast region was 17,168,000 (table 1). Since the standard error for this estimate is not shown in table I, it is necessary to interpolate between the standard error for 10,000,000 persons which is 180,000 and the standard error for 20,000,000 persons which is 240,000. Such interpolation gives 223,000 as the standard error for 17,168,000 persons with 1+ chronic conditions.

 Estimates of percentages in a percent distribution: Approximate standard errors of percentages in percent distributions of persons, conditions, injuries, and physician and dental visits are given in appropriate columns of table II. Approximate standard errors of percentages in percent distributions of disability days are obtained from table III. Examples:

(A) Approximately 14.3 percent of the 9,799,000 persons 45-64 years of age in the Northeast region had chronic limitation of activity (table 2). Since neither the base nor the percentage is shown in table 11, it is necessary to interpolate between 10 percent and 25 percent to obtain 0.89 as the standard error of 14.3 percent with a base of 5,000,000 and 0.66

as the standard error of 14.3 percent with a base of 10,000,000. A final interpolation between these results yields 0.67 rounded to 0.7 as the standard error for a statistic of 14.3 percent with a base of 9,799,000.

(B) Of the 266,237,000 days of bed disability reported for persons in the Northeast region, 23.1 percent of the days were for persons 45-64 years of age (table 4). Since neither the base nor the percentage is shown in table III, it is necessary to interpolate between 10 percent and 25 percent to obtain 0.96 as the standard error for 23.1 percent with a base of 250,000,000 and 0.67 as the standard error of 23.1 percent with a base of 500,000,000. A final interpolation between these results yields 0.9 as the standard error of 23.1 percent with a base of 266,237,000.

3. Estimates of prevalence rates: Prevalence estimates of a chronic condition per 1,000 persons are obtained from table II. Since table II is set up for the estimation of the standard error of a rate per 100, the prevalence per 1,000 must first be converted to a percentage; table II is then entered with this percentage and the number of persons in the population category (base of the percentage). The entry in the body of the table must then be multiplied by 10 to apply to the rate per 1,000 persons. Example:

The prevalence rate of arthritis and rheumatism among persons residing in urban areas of the Northeast region was 59.1 per 1,000 population (table 8). This rate expressed as a percentage is 5.9 and it is based on 31,443,000 persons residing in urban areas of the Northeast region. Since neither the base nor the percentage is shown in table II, it is necessary to interpolate between 5 percent and 10 percent to obtain 0.22 as the standard error for 5.9 percent with a base of 30,000,000 and 0.20 as the standard error of 5.9 percent with a base of 50,000,000. A final interpolation between these results yields 0.22 as the standard error of 5.9 with a base of 31,443,000. Multiplying this standard error by 10 gives 2.2 as the standard error for a rate of 59.1 persons per 1,000 population.

4. Estimates of the number of disability days per person per year, the number of physician or dental visits per person per year, and the rate of persons injured: Approximate standard errors for these rates are obtained as follows: (a) Obtain the standard error of the numerator from table I. Divide the standard error by the numerator itself. Square the result.

(b) Obtain the standard error of the denominator from table 1. Divide the standard error by the denominator itself. Square the result.

(Note: Where the denominator is adjusted to Bureau of the Census figures and therefore is not subject to sampling error, this quantity is zero.)

(c) Add the answers from steps (a) and (b) above and extract the square root.

(d) Multiply the answer from step (c) by the rate. The result is the approximate standard error of the rate. This procedure normally gives an overestimate of the true sampling error.

Examples:

(A) There were 5.4 physician visits per person per year for persons residing in the Northeast region (table 14). Using Rule 1 we find that the standard error for the numerator of 229,243,000 physician visits is 5,570,000, and the standard error for the denominator of 42,379,000 persons (table 18) is 272,000. Completing the computation as follows:

$$5.4 \sqrt{\left(\frac{5,570,000}{229,243,000}\right)^2 + \left(\frac{272,000}{42,379,000}\right)^2}$$

yields 0.1 as the standard error of 5.4 physician visits per person per year residing in the Northeast region.

(B) There were 267.6 persons injured per 1,000 population residing in urban areas of the United States (table 11). Using Rule 1 we find that the standard error for the numerator of 27,534,000 persons injured is 1,401,000 and the denominator, an estimate which has been adjusted to Bureau of the Census figures, has no sampling error. Completing the computations as follows:

$$267.6\sqrt{\left(\frac{1,401,000}{27,534,000}\right)^2+0}$$

yields a value of 13.6.

	For estimates of the number of:					
Size of estimate	Persons by health or other demographic characteristic ¹ Chronic conditions by type	Persons injured	Physician visits Dental visits	Disability days		
		The approximate st	andard error is:			
100 500 1,000 2,000 3,000	18 40 60 80 100	- 280 400 480	340 480 600	400 560 720		
5,000 10,000 20,000 30,000 50,000	130 180 240 260 280	640 880 1,280 1,440 2,000	800 1,040 1,520 1,800 2,400	960 1,200 1,760 2,160 2,800		
100,000 200,000 500,000 750,000 1,250,000	320 - - - -	2,800 - - - -	3,600 5,200 9,000 11,760 16,600	4,400 6,400 12,000 16,800 25,600		

(All numbers shown in thousands)

 1 The total U. S. population by age, sex, and residence has been adjusted to official Bureau of the Census figures and therefore is not subject to sampling error.

Table II. Standard errors of percentage distributions of persons, conditions, persons injured, and physician and dental visits

When the base of the percentage is number of:			estimat	ed perc	entagès	of:
Persons by health or other demographic characteristic Chronic conditions by type (In tho	Persons injured Physician visits Dental visits usands)	2 or 98	5 or 95	10 or 90	25 or 75	50
		The a (expre	pproxim ssed in	ate sta percen	ndard e tage po	rror ints) is:
100	2,500	2.9	4.5	5.4	7.8	10.3
500	12,500	1.3	2.0	2.4	3.5	4.6
1,000	25,000	0.9	1.4	1.7	2.5	3.3
2,000	50,000	0.6	1.0	1.2	1.8	2.3
3,000	75,000	0.6	0.8	1.0	1.4	1.9
5,000	125,000	0.4	0.6	0.8	1.1	1.4
10,000	250,000	0.3	0.5	0.6	0.8	1.0
20,000	500,000	0.2	0.3	0.4	0.6	0.7
30,000	750,000	0.2	0.2	0.3	0.5	0.6
50,000	1,250,000	0.2	0.2	0.2	0.3	0.5
100,000		0.1	0.2	0.2	0.2	0.3

When the base of the percentage is number of:	For estimated percentages of:				
Disability days (in thousands)	2 or 98	5 or 95	10 or 90	25 or 75	50
	The approximate standard error (expressed in percentage points) is:				
2,500 12,500 25,000 50,000 75,000	3.4 1.5 1.0 0.7 0.6	5.2 2.3 1.7 1.2 1.0	7.2 3.2 2.2 1.6 1.3	10.4 4.6 3.3 2.3 1.9	12.0 5.4 3.8 2.7 2.2
125,000 250,000	0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2	0.7 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2	1.0 0.7 0.5 0.4 0.3	1.4 1.0 0.7 0.6 0.5	1.7 1.2 0.9 0.6 0.6

Table III. Standard errors of percentage distributions of disability days

APPENDIX II

DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS USED IN THIS REPORT

Demographic Terms

Residence.-Residence is the term used to signify the division of the United States into urban, rural-nonfarm, and rural-farm populations. The definition of urban and rural areas is the same as that used in the 1950 Census.

Urban,-The urban population includes all persons living in (a) places of 2,500 inhabitants or more which are incorporated as cities, boroughs, or villages; (b) incorporated towns of 2,500 inhabitants or more except in New England, New York, and Wisconsin where "Towns" are simply minor civil divisions of counties; (c) the densely settled urban fringe including both incorporated and unincorporated areas around cities of 50,000 or more inhabitants: and (d) unincorporated places of 2,500 inhabitants or more outside any urban fringe. The remaining population is classified as rural.

Rural farm .- The rural-farm population includes all rural residents living on farms. In deciding whether the members of a household live on a farm or ranch, the statement of the household respondent is accepted with the following exception. A house occupied by persons who pay cash rent for house and yard only is not counted as a farm or ranch even if the surrounding area is farm land. This special case does not cover: (1) the living quarters of a tenant farmer who rents farm land as well as house and yard; (2) the quarters of a hired hand who receives living quarters on a farm as part of his compensation; or (3) separate living quarters inside a structure which is classified as being on a farm. In all of these cases the living quarters are counted as being on a farm.

Rural nonfarm.-The rural-nonfarm population includes all of the remaining rural population. Region .- For the purpose of classifying the population by geographic area, the States are grouped into

States Included

four regions. These regions, which correspond to those used by the Bureau of the Census, are as follows:

Region

Northeast	Maine, New Hampshire, Vermont, Massachusetts, Rhode Island, Connecticut, New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania
North Central	Michigan, Ohio, Indiana, Illinois, Wisconsin, Minnesota, Iowa, Missouri, North Dakota, South Dakota, Nebraska, Kansas
South	Delaware, Maryland, District of Columbia, Virginia, West Virginia,

South—Cont.	North Carolina, South Carolina, Georgia, Florida, Kentucky, Tennessee, Alabama, Mississippi, Arkansas, Louisiana, Oklahoma, Texas
West	Montana, Idaho, Wyoming, Colorado, New Mexico, Arizona, Utah, Nevada, Washington, Oregon, California

Age.-The age recorded for each person is the age at last birthday. Age is recorded in single years and grouped in a variety of distributions depending upon the purpose of the table.

Terms Relating to Disability

Disability.-Disability is a general term used to describe any temporary or long-term reduction of a person's activity as a result of an acute or chronic condition.

Long-Term Disability

Chronic activity limitation .- Chronic activity limitation is ascertained for all persons with one or more chronic conditions. These persons are divided into four categories according to the extent to which their activities are limited as a result of the conditions (cards C. D. E. and F. Appendix III). For the purpose of this report all degrees of chronic activity limitation have been combined.

Since the major activities of housewives and workers and other persons differ, a different set of criteria is used to determine reduction of major activity for each group. However, there is a general similarity between the criteria as will be seen in the following description of activity limitation for the various population groups:

Limitation of activity .-- Inability to carry on major activity of the group, or limited in amount or kind of participation in major activity of the group:

Preschool children:	inability to take part in ordinary play or limited in the amount or kind of play with other children
School-age children:	inability to go to school, or limited to certain types of schools or in school attendance; limited in ath-
Housewives:	letics or other extracur- ricular activities inability to do any house- work or limited in amount

Housewives-Cont.: or kind of housework; limited in recreationalor community activities

> inability to work at a job or business, or limited in amount of work or kind of employment; limited in recreational or community activities

No limitation of activity.-No limitation as described above.

Disability Days

other persons;

Disability days are classified according to whether they are days of restricted activity, bed-days, hospital days, work-loss days, or school-loss days. All hospital days are, by definition, days of bed disability; all days of bed disability are, by definition, days of restricted activity. The converse form of these statements is, of course, not true. Days lost from work and days lost from school are special terms which apply to the working and school-age populations only, but these, too, are days of restricted activity. Hence, "days of restricted activity" is the most inclusive term used to describe disability days.

Restricted-activity day .- A day of restricted activity is a day when a person cuts down on his usual activities for the whole of that day on account of an illness or an injury. The term "usual activities" for any day means the things that the person would ordinarily do on that day. For children under school age, "usual activities" depend upon whatever the usual pattern is for the child's day which will, in turn, be affected by the age of the child, weather conditions, and so forth. For retired or elderly persons, "usual activities" might consist of almost no activity, but cutting down on even a small amount for as much as a day would constitute restricted activity. On Sundays or holidays "usual activities" are taken to be the things the person usually does on such days-going to church, playing golf, visiting friends or relatives, or staying at home and listening to the radio, reading, looking at television, and so forth.

Restricted activity does not imply complete inactivity but it does imply only the minimum of "usual activities." A special nap for an hour after lunch does not constitute cutting down on usual activities, nor does the elimination of a heavy chore, such as cleaning ashes out of the furnace or hanging out the wash. If a farmer or housewife carries on only the minimum of the day's chores, however, this is a day of restricted activity.

A day spent in bed or a day home from work or school because of illness or injury is, of course, a restricted-activity day.

Bed-disability day.—A bed-disability day, sometimes for brevity referred to as a "bed-day," is a day on which a person was kept in bed either all or most of the day because of an illness or an injury. "All or most of the day" is defined as more than half of the daylight hours. All hospital days are included as bed-disability days even if the patient was not actually in bed at the hospital. <u>Work-loss</u> day.—A day is counted as lost from work if the person would have been going to work at a job or business that day but instead lost the entire work day because of an illness or an injury. If the person's regular work day is less than a whole day and the entire work day was lost, it would be counted as a whole work day lost. Work-loss days are determined only for persons 17 years of age and over.

<u>Person-days of restricted activity, bed disability,</u> <u>etc.</u>—Person-days of restricted activity, bed disability, and so forth are days of the various forms of disability experienced by any one person. The sum of days for all persons in a group represents an unduplicated count of all days of disability for the group.

Terms Defining Morbidity Conditions

<u>Condition.</u>—A morbidity condition, or simply a condition, is any entry on the questionnaire which describes a departure from a state of physical or mental well-being. It results from a positive response to one of a series of "illness-recall" questions (11-17, Appendix III). In the coding and tabulating process, conditions are selected or classified according to a number of different criteria, such as, whether they were medically attended; whether they resulted in disability; whether they were acute or chronic; or according to the type of disease, injury, impairment, or symptom reported. For the purposes of each published report or set of tables, only those conditions recorded on the questionnaire which satisfy certain stated criteria are included.

Conditions, except impairments, are coded by type according to the International Classification of Diseases, 1955 Revision, with certain modifications adopted to make the code more suitable for a household-interview-type survey.

<u>Chronic condition</u>.—A condition is considered to be chronic if it is described by the respondent (1) in terms of one of the chronic diseases on the "Check List of Chronic Conditions" or in terms of one of the types of impairments on the "Check List of Impairments" shown as cards A and B in Appendix III, or (2) the condition is described by the respondent as having been first noticed more than 3 months before the week of the interview.

Chronic effect or residual of injury.—A chronic condition resulting from an injury may be either an impairment, such as paralysis, or some other type of late effect of the injury, such as arthritis. Disability from such conditions is included with that resulting directly from the injuries, unless otherwise specified.

With a few exceptions, injuries that are still giving trouble are classified according to the chronic effect of the injury if the injury occurred 3 months or more before the interview week, but to the injury itself if the injury occurred less than 3 months before.

Impairment.—Impairments are chronic or permanent defects, usually static in nature, resulting from disease, injury, or congenital malformation. They represent decrease or loss of ability to perform various functions, particularly those of the musculoskeletal system and the sense organs. All impairments are classified by means of a special supplementary code for impairments. Hence, code numbers for impairments in the International Classification of Diseases are not used. In the Supplementary Code impairments are grouped according to the type of functional impairment and etiology.

Injury condition. — An injury condition, or simply an injury, is an acute condition of the type that is classified to the nature of injury code numbers (N800-N999) in the International Classification of Diseases. In addition to fractures, lacerations, contusions, burns, and so forth, which are commonly thought of as injuries, this group of codes include: effects of exposure, such as sunburn; adverse reactions to immunizations and other medical procedures; and poisonings. Unless otherwise specified, the term injury is used to cover all of these.

As in the case of all acute conditions, acute injury conditions involving neither restricted activity nor medical attendance are excluded from the statistics.

Terms Relating to Conditions

<u>Prevalence of conditions.</u>—In general, prevalence of conditions is the estimated number of conditions of a specified type existing at a specified time or the average number existing during a specified interval of time.

The prevalence of chronic conditions denotes the number of chronic cases reported to be present or assumed to be present at the time of interview; those assumed to be present at the time of the interview are cases described by the respondent in terms of one of the chronic conditions on the "Check List of Chronic Conditions" and reported to have been present at some time during the 12-month period prior to the interview.

Estimates of the prevalence of chronic conditions may be restricted to cases that satisfy certain additional stated criteria, such as, for example, cases involving a day or more in bed in the past year, or cases still under medical care.

Onset of condition. — A morbidity condition, whether acute or chronic, is considered to have had its onset when it was first noticed. This could be the time the person first felt "sick," or became injured, or it could be the time the person or his family was first told by a physician that he had a disease of which he was previously unaware. For a chronic condition, episodic in nature, the onset is always considered to be the original onset rather than the start of the most recent episode.

<u>Medically attended condition</u>.—A condition for which a physician was consulted is called a medically attended condition. Consulting a physician includes consultation in person or by telephone for treatment or advice. Advice from the physician transmitted to the patient through the nurse is counted as medical consultation as well as visits to physicians in clinics or hospitals. If at one visit the physician is consulted about more than one condition for each of several patients, each condition is counted as medically attended.

Terms Relating to Persons Injured

<u>Person injured</u>, — A person injured is one who has sustained an injury in an accident, or in some type of nonaccidental violence. (See definition of "Injury condition," above.) Each time a person is injured he is included in the statistics as a separate "person injured"; hence, one person may be included more than once.

The statistics of persons injured include only persons sustaining injuries which involved at least one full day of restricted activity or medical attendance.

Note that the number of persons injured is not equivalent to the number of "accidents" for several reasons: (1) the term "accident," as commonly used, may not involve injury at all; (2) more than one injured person may be involved in a single accident so that the number of accidents resulting in injury would be less than the number of persons injured in accidents; and (3) the term "accident" ordinarily implies an accidental origin, whereas "persons injured" includes persons whose injury resulted from certain nonaccidental violence.

The number of persons injured in a specified time interval is always equal to or less than the incidence of injury conditions, since one person may incur more than one injury in a single accident or nonaccidental violence.

<u>Class of accident.</u>—Injuries, injured persons, and resulting days of restricted activity may be grouped according to class of accident. This is a broad classification of the types of events which resulted in persons being injured. Most of these events are accidents in the usual sense of the word, but some are other kinds of mishap, such as overexposure to the sun or adverse reactions to medical procedures, and others are nonaccidental violence, such as attempted suicide. The classes of accidents are: (1) motor-vehicle accidents, (2) accidents occurring while at work, (3) home accidents, and (4) other. These categories are not mutually exclusive. For example, a person may be injured in a motor-vehicle accident which occurred while the person was at work.

Motor-vehicle accident.— The class of accident is "motor vehicle" if a motor vehicle was involved in any way. Thus, it is not restricted to moving motor vehicles or to persons riding in motor vehicles. A motor vehicle is any mechanically or electrically powered device, not operated on rails, upon which or by which any person or property may be transported or drawn upon a land highway. Any object, such as a trailer, coaster, sled, or wagon, being towed by a motor vehicle is considered a part of the motor vehicle. Devices used solely for moving persons or materials within the confines of a building and its premises are not counted as motor vehicles.

<u>Accident while at work.</u>—The class of accident is "while at work" if the injured person was 17 years of age or over and was at work at a job or a business at the time the accident happened.

Home accident.—The class of accident is "home" if the injury occurred either inside the house or outside the house. "Outside the house" refers to the yard, buildings, and sidewalks on the property. "Home" includes not only the person's own home but also any other home in which he might have been when he was injured.

Other.—The class of accident is "other" if the occurrence of injury cannot be classified in one or more of the first three class-of-accident categories. This category therefore includes persons injured in public places (e.g., tripping and falling in a store or on a public sidewalk), and also nonaccidental injuries such as homicidal and suicidal attempts. The survey does not cover the military population, but current disability of various types resulting from prior injury occurring while the person was in the Armed Forces is covered and is included in this class. The class also includes mishaps for which the class of accident could not be ascertained.

Medical Care Terms

<u>Physician visit</u>.—A physician visit is defined as consultation with a physician, in person or by telephone, for examination, diagnosis, treatment, or advice. The visit is considered to be a physician visit if the service is provided directly by the physician or by a nurse or other person acting under a physician's supervision. For the purpose of this definition "physician" includes doctors of medicine and osteopathic physicians. The term "doctor" is used in the interview, rather than "physician," because of the need to keep to popular usage. However, the concept toward which all instructions are directed is that which is described here.

Physician visits for services provided on a mass basis are not included in the tabulations. A service received on a mass basis is defined as any service involving only a single test (e.g., test for diabetes) or a single procedure (e.g., smallpox vaccination) when this single service was administered identically to all persons who were at the place for this purpose. Hence, persons passing through a tuberculosis chest X-ray trailer, by this definition, are not included as physician visits. However, a special chest X-ray given in a physician's office or an outpatient clinic is considered to be a physician visit.

Physician visits to hospital inpatients are not included.

If a physician is called to the house to see more than one person, the call is considered to be a separate physician visit for each person about whom the physician was consulted.

A physician visit is associated with the person about whom the advice was sought, even if that person did not actually see or consult the physician. For example, if a mother consults a physician about one of her children, the physician visit is ascribed to the child.

<u>Place of visit</u>.—The place of visit is a classification of the types of places at which a physician visit took place. (See definition of "Physician visit.") The definitions of the various categories are as follows:

- 1. <u>Home</u> is defined as any place in which the person was staying at the time of the physician's visit. It may be his own home, the home of a friend, a hotel, or any other place the person may be staying (except as an overnight patient in a hospital).
- 2. <u>Office</u> is defined as the office of a physician in private practice only. This may be an office in the physician's home, an individual office in an office building, or a suite of offices occupied by several physicians. For purposes of this survey, physicians connected with prepayment group practice plans are considered to be in private practice.
- 3. Other includes treatment or advice received from a physician or under a physician's general supervision at a hospital outpatient clinic, a company or industry health unit, a school, insurance office, health department clinic, or any other place at which a physician consultation might take place. Also included in this category is advice given in a telephone call directly by the physician or transmitted through the nurse.

Dental Care Terms

<u>Dental visit</u>.—Each visit to a dentist's office for treatment or advice is considered to be a dental visit. The visit may involve services provided directly by the dentist or by a dental hygienist acting under a dentist's supervision. Services provided while a person was a patient in a hospital for overnight or longer are not considered to be dental visits.

Edentulous persons.—Persons who have lost all of their permanent teeth are classed as edentulous persons. An edentulous person may have dentures but does not have any natural teeth.

APPENDIX III

QUESTIONNAIRE

The items below show the exact content and wording of the questionnaire used in the household survey. The actual questionnaire is designed for a household as a unitand includes additional spaces for reports on more than one person.

CONFI	The Nat DENTIAL: would p purpose	ional H ermit i s of the	lealth Survey is aut dentification of the survey, and will n	horize indiv ot be c	d by Public Law ridual will be l lisclosed or rele	e 652 held	of the strictly	84th Congre y confidentia ters for any o	ss (70 Sca l, will be wher purpo	t 489; 42 U.S used only by uses (22 FR 1	.C. 3 7 pers 1687)	05). A ions en	ll inform gaged is	ation which a and for t	ch he
Form NHS-2 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 1. Questionnsize (4-18-58) Accing as Collecting Agenci for the U.S. PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE															
			NATIONAL	. HE	ALTH SUR	VEI	r					ર્ભ			
						_					7	ue stion	nsires		
2. (a) Add	lress or description of	location		_	······		3. Idea Cod	a. 4. Sub- sample weight	5. Sample	6. PSU Number	7.5	egment	No.	8. Serial M	lo.
						'			L	L			ن 		
													····[1 40
(b) Type o ing qua	f liv- Dwelling unit arters Other	(c) Ns	me of Special Dwellin	g Plac	e Code		10. **	at is the telep	none numbi	No phone		what is	the best	time to cal	
12. Are th vacant	ere any other living qu t, in this building (apa:	orters, i rtment)?	accupied ar	🗋 Ye	• 🗔 No		14. D. Ei	ntrance to g	e living in pet to his li	this building iving quarters	use Y	OUR	⊏)Yes 🗔] No
Ask st al 13. is the to live	l units except spartme re any other building o r in - either occupied o	nt house n this pe	s operty for people 17] Ye:	• [] No		lf "Y wher listin	'ea" to questio ber one or mo ur ia to be con	ns 12, 13 o re addition	INSTRUCT of 14 spply def al questions	IONS initio	n of a d ibould l	welling under filled	mit to deter and whether	mine r the
<u>├</u>	·, ·,				15. RECORD OF	CAL	LS AT	HOUSEHOLDS							
	ltem		1	Com.	2		Com.	3	Com.	4		Com.		5	Com.
Eati	re bousebold	Date													$\left \right $
Callback indiv respon	ks for ridual Col. No	Date													-
					16. REASON	FOR	NON-I	NTERVIEW		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					<u> </u>
TYPE:	A			8	<u> </u>			<u>с</u>				z			
	No one st home-		Vacant - non-s	esson: nal			Demoli In sam	ished ple by mistake	Inte	rview not obta	ined	for:			
Reason:	repeated calls	ш	Usual residence	e else	where] Eliminated in sub- sample Cols because:						_		
	Other (Specily)		Other (Specify	•)			Other (Specily)								
Comments	on non-interview					L==			<u>~_1</u>						
17. Signat	we of Interviewer										18.	Code			
Special in	structions or ooten												_		_
1. (a) Wha (b) Wha	it is the name of the he it ore the names of all	ad of th other pe	is household? (Enter rsons who live here?	name (List	in (irst column) all persons who u	isuall	y live t	nere,				Last na	me.		(1)
and per: (c) Do	all persons staying he soos in the prescribed any (ather) lodgers of (order.) aamers	have no usual place o	of resid No	ence elsewhere.	List	these				•				
(d) te t uwo o he (a) la t	here anyone else who i by on business? On o ospitol? here anyone else stovi	lives he visit? 1 na here	re whe is now [emporarily in ' []]] now? []]	ło ło	🗋 Yes (List) 🗌 Yes (List)	·					First name and initial				
(f) Do (ny of these people has] No (leave on questio	ve o hon nnaire)	e elsewhere?	honseh	old member, dele	te)									
2. How or head, v	e you reloted to the he wife, daughter, grandso	od of th a, moth	o household? (Enter er-in-law, partner, lod	relacion ger, lo	nship to head; for dges's wife, etc.)	CX 80	mple:					Relatio	aship	Head	
3. How of	d were you on your los	t birthd	by?									Age		[] Uec 1 y	ler ear
4. Race (Check one box for each	person)				·					☐ ♥ħ	ite] 0	ther Ne	gro
5. Sex (C) 6. Where	heck one box for each ; were you born? (Recor	person) d state	or foreign country)									ा भाव र्हित	ie ce or for	ign country	male y)
If 14 y 7. Are yo (Chec)	If 14 years old or over, ask: 7. Are you now married, widawed, divorced, separated ar newer married? (Check one box fac each person)											() Man () ∀ic	rried lowed	Under 14 ye Dis Ser Never marri	cars varced parated ied
lf 14 y	ears old or over, ask:		······································											Under 14 ye	ears
8. What in (Circle	<mark>s the highest grade y</mark> ou e highest grade comple	comple ted or c	ned in school? heck "None")			_						Elem: High: Colleg	12 12 e: 12	3 4 5 6 3 4 3 4 5+	78

.

,

	If Mel	e and	1 14 veer	s old or ove								<u> </u>					
9.	(a) Di	d you		rve in the A	med Forces	of the Unit	ed States?					Yes	L_] F	em.oru i	nd. 14 yrs No		
(b) Ars you now in the Armed Forces, not counting the reserves? If "Yes," delete this person from questionnaire)								. <u> </u>						 No			
(c) Was any of your service during a war or was it peace-time only?										U Var	 ,		Peace-				
lf "War," ask:											Spanis	h		WW-11			
(a) During which war did you serve? If "Peace-time" only, ask:												□ ₩₩-1	40		Korean		
(e) Was any of your service between June 27, 1950 and January 31, 1955?								1, 1955?				T Yes			No		
	lf 6 ye	ters o	old or ev	tr, ask:									Vi	nder 6 y	e ars		
10.	(0) W ()	For a	uales ove	a ling work 16): work	ing, looking f	2 months or work, or	doing some	thing else?				Vorkin	−8 is for w	ork			
(For females over 16), working, looking for work, keeping house, or doing a (For children 6-16); going to school or doing something else?								ise, ar doing i	aomething e	ilse?		Keepir	ng house	•.			
)	lf *Sou	methi	ng else"	checked, a	nä person is	50 years ol	d or over, a	sk:				_] Going	to scho hing els	e			
-	(b) A	tre ye	o retired	17 								Yes			No		
	R	In he	terview (is at ho	me. Enter o	erson for him column numbe	self for que r of respon	estions 11-2 dent ja cac	26 and Tables h column.	I, II, and /	N, if		Col. No.	nded for	self s respo	ondens		
-	We a	re int	betaere	n all kinds	of illness, w	hether seri	ous or not -	-		· ···		Yes			□ No		
11.	Were (a) W (b) A	you hat w	aick at a ras the ri na eise?	ny time LA: atter?	ST WEEK OR	THE WEE	K BEFORE	7							_		
12	Last	weel	or the v	reek before	did you have	any accide	ents or inju	ries, either at		(a) What were they?		Yes			□ No		
13.	Did y	you fi y the	el any i	l effects la d before th	st week or th	e week bef	ore from an	accident ar	<u> </u>	fat with might as and		Yes			□ N•		
	(=) W (b) A	hat v nythi	ng else?	e effects?	•												
14	Lost cond	weel ition	, or the v (besides	week before	did you take you tald me a	any medic bout)?	ine or treats	ment for any		(a) For what conditions? (b) Anything else?		Yes N					
15.	AT 1 for a	FHE I	PRESEN time? (T TIME do If "No") Ev	you have any on though the	allmeats a ly don't bat	r conditions ther you all	that have las the time?	beta	(a) What are they? (b) Anything else?		Yea			□ No		
						Table	I · ILLN	ESSES, IMP	AIRMEN								
			Did	When did	the doctor sa Id ha use any	y in II	f an impairs	sent or	If eye	What kind oftrouble	What part of th	e body is LAST WEEK How					
			ever soll	medicol	erms?	6	rom q. 13 or	q. 17,	of any	Ask only for:	Show in follow	ing detail	WEEK	8£-	days,		
			to a	(If doctor	not talked to) - record res	- "No"	32:		and	alletgy asthma	for members lis Hend - (Skull	ted below:	· · · c		ing the 2		
			about	dent's des	scription)		that was the	couse of1	older	anthritia stroke	face)		down		week-		
			••••	(If ill-eff	cts of earlie		If accident	or injury, alao	ask:	(unor (or cysts)	5pine - (Upper, ar lower)	middle or	octivii	vitles a much			
nber	Col. No.	Oues		and also	fill Table A)	ects.			-	Any entry in col. (d-1)	bock		08 0 d	oy?]		
ie pu	of per-	tion No.		For an ac	cident or inju	шу			you	or (d-2) of:	Arm-(Shoulder elbow, lo	, upper, wer, wrist,	Chec	k one			
rie I	300			occurring weeks, as	during pase ; sk:	2			ordin-	disease	hand)	as know	No	Yes	{		
		ĺ							news-	coupled	lower, at	kle, foot)	100				
				What part hurt? Wh	of the body w or kind of inj	иов 1177			paper	seeing or heating;	ALSO	, or ear,	10		ł		
				wos it?	Anything else	7			glosses?	"mental" or any	state whether BOTH.	ONE or	(+))]		
				(A150, 11	() to	-		1.00		internal organ							
-	(8)	(b)	(c)		(d-1)	-+	(or 2)	(d-3) X Yes	(q-4) X	(d-5	, x	(e)	(1)	(g)		
1			□ No						□ N•	l					Days		
~						Table II ·	HOSPITA	LIZATION	DURING F	AST 12 MONTHS							
		1	Whe	n did enter	How many days were	To Interv How	How	Was	What did t did they u	hey say at the hospital the ca se any medical terms?	ndition was ·	Were any on you du	operatio	ns perf s stay d	formed		
	Col.	0	the es- pite	hos- 17	yau in the hospital,	many of these	many of these	this person	(If "they"	did't say, ask):		the hospit	al?				
ų,	No. of	tio	11 (Mo	ath, Year)	not count- ing the	- days	- daya were in	still in the	i What did the last doctor you talked to say it was? If "Yes" the (a) What was sho					a name of the			
unt.	per-	-			day you left?	the past	the past	hospital	(Show sam	ue detail as in cols. (d-1)-(d-5) of T.I}	operat	ion ?	ne name of the			
Line	204					nontbs?	2 weeksr	Sunday uight?	(If conditi	on from accident or injury, fil	l TableA)	(b) Any et	her ope	ration s	7		
	(a)	(5)	(c)	(d)	(e)	(1)	(8)		(b)			<u>(i)</u>				
		Τ	Mo:			(A)I		🗆 Yes		, <u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>		T Yes			□ N•		
- 1		1	1		ļ	٥t											

	1 1 4 1	1											
			Mo:		(C Yes					□ Yes ↓	□ No
1	<u> </u>	[Yr:	Days	Days	Days	□ N•	Ĺ					
						т	ABLEA	(Accidents an	d Injuries)				
	Line No from Table	•• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	1. What part of th	io body was l	hyrt? What	kind of inj	ury was it?	Anything else?				Accident has pass 2 weeks	opened during s
2.	When di	id it hap	open? Year_	(Ent	er month al	so if the ye	ar is 1957	or 1958) Me	onth			Dest 2 weeks	opened during
3.	Where d	lid the c	accident hoppen?		(] At home	(inside or (own home	outside the house or someone else	ie) t's) []		ices	[] Some other p	lace
4.	Was a a Involve	car, truc ed in the	k, hus ar other a accident in any	otor vehicle way?	C	Yes		No					
5.	Were yo the acc	su at wa ident h	rk at your jab ar appened?	business wh	•••	Yes		No	Under 1	4 years at time of acci	ident		

										<u>.</u>									
16. Hos ony THE P/	one in th AST 12 M	e family - ya ONTH\$?	w, your	, etc.	had any of these c	onditions	DURI	NG							Yes			No	
(Read Card A, conditions by conditions; record any conditions mentioned in the column for the person)																			
17. Does anyone in the family have any of these conditions?									t =	Yes			No						
(Read Card B, condition by condition; record any conditions mentioned in the column for the person)																			
18. (a) LAS	TWEEK	OR THE WE	EK BEI	ORE	d anyone in the far	nily - you	, yaut-	-, etctalk					-	b	Yes		C] No	
to o Lí "Yes"	doctor or	ga to o doc	tor's af	lice or c	linic? Anyone els	•7													
(b) How many times during the past 2 weeks?										ace_		Times	-						
(d) How many times at (home, office, clinic, etc.)? (Placed and a set of times of a set of the set of a set of the se										Att	ome								
(Record Lossi aumber of Limés for each 1ype of place) ("Hospits! clinic" excludes overnight stays)											Hos Con Ove	pital clin npany or i r telepho	ic industr ne	<u>, </u>					
19. (a) Last week or the week before did anyone in the family ga to a dentist? Anyone else?											er (Speci	(7)	···						
lí "Yes" (b) How	many tim	es during th	e past 2	t weeks	,				•									1 100	
												·		G	One	C	No. of th	nes	
20. How ma	ny times	altogether in	the pa	st 12 m	inths did you go to	a dentist	, 				_				T**	None] Four or r	DOre	
21. (a) DUR	ING THE	PAST 12 M ongar?	ONTHS	has an	rone in the family b	wen o pa	lient in	o hospital						6	Yes (Tal	ole II) 			
(b) How	many tin	wes were you	in the	hospita	17							<u></u>		╞		1. 11)	No. of tiz	aes	
I 22. (a) Duris sani If "Yes	ng thé pa tarium? "	st 12 months	i has en	iyane in	the family been a p	patient in	0 AU78	ing home or							·				
(b) How	many tin	nes were you	in on	ursing h	ame or sanitarium?											-	No. of tir	<u></u>	
25. During t your*s, solaries	the past " your"s, s, rents fi	2 months in etc.? (Show rom property,	which Card H) , pensic	group di) Inclué :ns, helj	d the tetal income le income from all s p from relatives, etc	of your fa lources, s c.	mily fo such as	all, that is, , wages,						Grou	φ No.				
		_			Table I - II	LLNESS	ES, I	MPAIRME	TS AN	DAC	CIDENT	s	_					_	
How many	lf 6 y	vents old	Did y DUR	au first NG TH	NOTICE	To	Did y	rou first	How Ion	9 0	Da you still take	About	A	sk aft		ning la	1.51 1.011		
days were you	Last	lf "Yes"	or be	fare the	t time?	viewer:	DUR	ING THE	last talked to		ony medi- cine or	many days	Plea		16 1, 2	u	u 1,	1	
in bed all or	week or the	is col.(1); How many	Chec	k one	Did stort during the post	lf col. (k) is	MON [.]	THS or • that	a doctar about	.7 1	hat the	during the post	this	er and	or 3 10 col. (r):	"Yes" in	ot 2" or "3"		
most of the day?	before	days did	Before 3	Dwing 3	2 weeks or before that	checked, or the	time]	7	(If less	sa prescribed		ibed has	read	each	is this becover	col. (s)	(r) ask:	1	
	you	you from work	months	months	(If during past	tion	(1f du 12 ma	ring past ontbs, ask):	than one month,		lor?	? kept you in bed ilow far all	Then me w	hich	of any of the	Which	Please look of	5	
	been working	(going to school)?	10		2 weeks, ssk):	either	Whiel	h month?	Und. 1		ony advice	or most	state fits :	nnient You	condi- tions		this cord and	1	
	ot a job or busi-		(0))		Which week, last week or the week	Cards A or B,			tor "Mo.	·	e gover	doy?	best.		you have told as	(Eo- ter X on statement			
	ness except				before?	continue; other-							Card F. at	3 C	C about? for me which				
	tor 7 (If 6-16					wise STOP							appro print	~ €)		condi- tion fits you			
	yrs., ask,								ľ				ľ			0a@ed	(Show		
	("going to school")																Card G)		
(h)	(i)	(j) Dava	(k)	(1)	(m)	(4.8)	Mo	(a)	(0)	Mos.	(p)	(q)	<u> </u>	()	(3)		(0)	t	
· or	No	or			🔲 Week before		Y [_]Be	efore 🔲 Birth		Yrs. Dr.	⊡ No □ No Dr.	or None			□ N•		<u> </u>	1	
					Table II - H	OSPIT	ALIZ/	ATION DU	RING P	AST	12 MON1	rhs							
What is th	ie nome a	nd address a	of the		For completed	hospitali	zations	s only:											
hespital y	rçu werê i	in?			the hospital	col. (k)),	both cois.	of	the the	' w	(ho carries the	cost a	f this	insuranc	ethat	is, who		
(Enter on	me, city i	or county and	d State)		by any kind of insurance?	Or. by	any	Do you ex	pact bil be	l was (token	(will F	ogs the premiu	m7						
{			•			kind of plan th	ion i	hospital b	for in	by wronce	.,								
{						pays f hospit	er ol	by insuran or any pla	ce n										
(i) (k) (l) (m) (n) (o)																			
Yes (Skip Yes (Skip Yes Under ½ Family member(s) Other (Spacify)							•												
							,	□ No (Se	••• 🗆	½up %iorr	to ¼ 🗔 more 📋	Employer Union, clubs,	etc.						
·						<u></u>		TES AND					_	_		-		—	
1						F	DOTNO	TES AND C	OMMENT	5									
1																			
1																			
1																			

Card A	Card C	Card E	Card G
NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY Check List of Chronic Conditions 1. Asthma 16. Kidney stones or othe kidney trouble 2. Any allergy kidney trouble 3. Tuberculosis 17. Arthritis or rheumat 4. Chronic bronchitis 18. Prostate trouble 5. Repeated attacks of sinus trouble 19. Diabetes 6. Rheumatic fever 20. Thyroid trouble or 7. Hardening of the arteries goiter 8. High blood pressure 21. Epilepsy or convulsion 9. Heart trouble of any kind 10. Stroke 22. Mental or nervous 11. Trouble with varicose veins trouble 12. Hemorrhoids or piles 23. Repeated trouble with 13. Gallbladder or liver trouble back or spine 14. Stomach ulcer 24. Tumor or cancer 15. Any other chronic 25. Chronic skin trouble stomach trouble 26. Hernia or rupture	NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY For: Workers and other persons except Housewives and Children 1. Cannot work at all at present. 2. Can work hut limited in amount or kind of work. 3. Can work but limited in kind or amount of outside activities. 4. Not limited in any of these ways.	NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY For: Children from 6 to 16 years old and others going to school 1. Cannot go to school at all at present time. 2. Can go to school but limited to certain types of schools or in school attendance. 3. Can go to school but limited in other activities. 4. Not limited in any of these ways.	 NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY Confined to the house all the time, except in emergencies. Can go outside but need the help of another person in getting around outside. Can go outside alone but have trouble in getting around freely. Not limited in any of these ways.
Card B	Çard D	Gard F	Card H
NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY Check List of impairments	NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY For: Housewife	NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY For: Children under 6 years old	NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY Family income during past 12 months
 Deafness or serious trouble with hearing. Serious trouble with seeing, even with glasses. Condition present since birth, such as cleft palate or club foot. Stammering or other trouble with speech. Missing fingers, hand, or arm. Missing toes, foot, or leg. Cerebral palsy. 	 Cannot keep house at all at present. Can keep house but limited in amount or kind of housework. Can keep house but limited in outside activities. Not limited in any of these ways. 	 Cannot take part at all in ordinary play with other children. Can play with other children but limited in amount or kind of play. Not limited in any of these ways. 	 Under \$500 (Including loss) \$500 - \$999 \$1,000 - \$1,999 \$2,000 - \$2,999 \$3,000 - \$3,999 \$4,000 - \$4,999 \$5,000 - \$6,999 \$7, \$5,000 - \$8,999

SELECTED REPORTS FROM THE U.S. NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY

Public Health Service Publication No. 584

Series A (Program descriptions, survey designs, concepts, and definitions)

- No. 1. Origin and Program of the U. S. National Health Survey. 25 cents.
- No. 2. The Statistical Design of the Health Household-Interview Survey. 35 cents.
- No. 3. Concepts and Definitions in the Health Household-Interview Survey. 30 cents.

Series B (Health Interview Survey results by topics)

- No. 6. Acute Conditions, Incidence and Associated Disability, United States, July 1957-June 1958. 35 cents.
- No. 7. Hospitalization, Patients Discharged From Short-Stay Hospitals; United States, July 1957-June 1958. 30 cents.
- No. 8. Persons Injured by Class of Accident, United States, July 1957-June 1958. 40 cents.
- No. 9. Impairments by Type, Age, and Sex, United States, July 1957-June 1958. 25 cents.
- No. 10. Disability Days, United States, July 1957-June 1958. 40 cents.
- No. 11. Limitation of Activity and Mobility Due to Chronic Conditions, United States, July 1957-June 1958. 30 cents.
- No. 12. Chronic Respiratory Conditions Reported in Interviews, United States, July 1957-June 1958. 30 cents.
- No. 13. Heart Conditions and High Blood Pressure Reported in Interviews, United States, July 1957-June 1958. 30 cents.
- No. 14. Dental Care, Interval and Frequency of Visits, United States, July 1957-June 1959. 35 cents.
- No. 15. Dental Care, Volume of Visits, United States, July 1957-June 1959. 35 cents.
- No. 16. Types of Injuries, Incidence and Associated Disability, United States, July 1958-June 1959. 30 cents.
- No. 17. Peptic Ulcers Reported in Interviews, United States, July 1957-June 1959. 25 cents.
- No. 1B. Acute Conditions, Incidence and Associated Disability, United States, July 1958-June 1959. 30 cents.
- No. 19. Volume of Physician Visits, United States, July 1957-June 1959. 40 cents.
- No. 20. Arthritis and Rheumatism Reported in Interviews. United States, July 1957-June 1959. 25 cents.
- No. 21. Diabetes Reported in Interviews, United States, July 1957-June 1959. 25 cents.
- No. 22. Loss of Teeth, United States, July 1957-June 1958. 25 cents.
- No. 23. Acute Conditions, Geographic Distribution, United States, July 1958-June 1959. 30 cents.
- No. 24. Acute Conditions, Seasonal Variations, United States, July 1957-June 1960. 35 cents.
- No. 25. Hernias Reported in Interviews, United States, July 1957-June 1959. 25 cents.
- No. 26. Interim Report on Health Insurance, United States, July-December 1959. 45 cents.

Series C (Health Interview Survey results for population groups)

- No. 1. Children and Youth, Selected Health Characteristics, United States, July 1957-June 1958. 35 cents.
- No. 2., Veterans, Health and Medical Care, United States, July 1957-June 1958. 40 cents.
- No. 3. The Hawaii Health Survey, Description and Selected Results, Oahu, Hawaii, October 1958-September 1959. 40 cents.
- No. 4. Older Persons, Selected Health Characteristics, United States, July 1957-June 1959. 45 cents.
- No. 5. Selected Health Characteristics by Area, Geographic Regions and Urban-Rural Residence, United States, July 1957-June 1959.

Series D (Developmental and Evaluation Reports)

- No. 1. A Study of Special Purpose Medical-History Techniques. 30 cents.
- No. 2. Co-operation in Health Examination Surveys. 35 cents.
- No. 3. Hospital Utilization in the last Year of Life. 30 cents.

Catalog Card

U.S. National Health Survey
Selected health characteristics by area, geographic regions, and
urban-rural residence, United States, July 1957-June 1959. Selected
statistics relating to limitation of activity, disability days.
chronic conditions, persons injured, and physician and dental visits
by geographic region and urban, rural-farm, and rural-nonfarm resi-
dence. Based on data collected in household interviews during the
period July 1957-June 1959. Washington,U.S. Dept. of Health, Educa-
tion, and Welfare, Public Heaith Service, 1961.
40 p. tables. diagrs. 27cm. (Ite Health statistics,ser.C-5).
U.S. Public Health Service. Publication no.584-C5.
1. U.S. — Statistics, Medical. 2. Health surveys — U.S. 3. Diseases,Chronic.
I. Title. II. Title: Health characteristics by area, geographic regions, and ur-
ban-rural residence.
Cataloged by U.S. Dept. of Health, Education, and Welfare Library.